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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear shareholders of KVB Kunlun:

Another year has gone by in a blink of an eye.

In summary, the Group achieved a total annual revenue of
approximately HK$471.1 million and recorded an annual profit
of approximately HK$34.2 million. These statistics might not be
as outstanding as they would be under normal circumstances.
However, there were ongoing fluctuations in the global financial
market and economic outlook in 2018 which were further worsened
in the fourth quarter, where uncertainties in terms of the direction
of monetary policies and trade disputes have weakened the
investment sentiment and trading traffic at the end of the year.
Under such circumstances, the Group’s results could be deemed
as satisfactory as it was able to maintain substantial growth in
earnings and stable financial conditions. The Group still maintained
strong control over risks and operations, therefore, our customers,
counterparties and the regulatory authorities have placed a lot of
trust in our current system, network and trading capability.

In early 2018, the Group issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000, which have been
fully subscribed. This is the first capital operation completed by the
Group since its transfer of listing from the GEM to the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which demonstrated
the confidence of the subscribers and the market in the financial
independence and fulfilment of commitments of listed companies.

2018 was also a year of transitioning from the old to the new.
As the original chairman of the Board retired at the end of his
term, we welcomed the arrival of four new executive and non-
executive directors, bringing in new experience and vitality to the
management of the Group.

2019 will be a challenging year ahead. We believe the fundamentals
of global economy will become harsher while regional protectionism
persists. The trade conflicts and the mid-to-long term adjustments
in macro and monetary policies will continue to leave deep impacts,
and may even cause short-term panics in the market due to
changes or fluctuations, including detrended fluctuations of the
exchange rate. In consideration of the interests of the industries
and strategic positions behind the trade war, no one will make easy
concessions for compromise in the trade conflicts. The aggravating
geopolitical risks faced by certain countries and regions are also of

major concerns.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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As a company engaging in forex brokerage business, we do not
believe this could bring positive effect on market activities; on the
contrary, the uncertainties and risks will lead to a drop in trade
sentiments of investors.

Yet, as negative market sentiment brews on, we see that
organizations and enterprises are attempting proactive
adjustments, in order to mitigate risks and reduce potential losses
through learning and using foreign exchange-related financial
instruments. The implementation of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area strategic development plan brought not
only ideas, but also massive demands from enterprises in financial
trading, and market systems which are gradually becoming
internationalized.

The Group finds opportunities hidden amidst these challenges.
Traditional barriers in financial information, data and computation
models are slowly giving way to technological advances which are
open for sharing, thus bringing in new operation and management
models to the real economy. In particular, the application of
foreign exchange has gone beyond trading and payment, and is
becoming an electronic technology which can help the enterprises
in optimizing every micro-financial operation. In the context of this
general environment, it is worthwhile to explore how the Group
can leverage the system, information and corporation treasury
models that have long been accumulated by KVB to enhance its
capabilities in foreign financial technology and how the Group can
gradually expand its existing product offering with the advantages
of strategic shareholders in the industry.

The Group will remain with its composure while preparing to
respond to all kinds of changes, and seeking for prudent progress.
In 2019, the Group will continue to focus on our main tasks in
improving preparations for risk management, quick responses
and stringent risks controls. With years of trading experiences and
insights into the future, the Group will actively respond to market
fluctuations and provide our investment customers with superior
and dependable trading services. Meanwhile, we will continue
to capitalize on our advantage in differential services and march
forward along the path of servicing the real economy with our
technological capabilities. The Group will definitely adhere to the
strategy of attaining growth and success through technological
development. Only by keeping our initial aspirations of mutual
benefits and prosperity through intelligence and open mind that we
can grow together with our customers.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

KVB Kunlun will be celebrating its 20th anniversary soon. We firmly
believe the growth potentials of the industry that we operate in and
the opportunities given by the time, and we fully understand our
social responsibilities and missions. All KVB staff will strive to create
greater value for our shareholders, investors and customers who
have been growing and developing alongside KVB Kunlun.

LIU Stefan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, together with the
audited comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the year under review, we have experienced a market
condition with increased overall market volatility and many swings,
driven by changing global economic conditions and unexpected
geopolitics events. Significant swings in market volatility can result
in increased customer trading losses and higher turnover; therefore,
it is difficult to predict volatility and its effects on the financial
markets. Overall, the revenue had decreased compared with 2017
figures.

The year started with positive economic outlook for US and other
major countries, which had driven global asset values to new highs
in early February. The turning point was Trump administration’s
decision to renegotiate trade terms between US and other major
economic bodies (Canada, EU and China, etc.), which led to
fear of increased tariffs. As trade-conflicts built up, and Federal
Open Market Committee continued to adjust cash rate up to the
“neutral level” in response to a fast recovering US economy, the
global investors moved quickly towards US assets, which led to
depreciation of many major currencies, commodities and indexes
against USD. Geopolitics events, such as US sanction on Iran, US-
Turkey diplomatic conflict, Saudi Arabic journalist assassination,
and Brexit deal negotiation had also imposed unexpected
fluctuation on the market.

The top three most traded FX pairs in the year under reviewed were
USD/JPY, EUR/USD and GBP/USD. For contracts for difference
(*CFD”) and commodity products, gold was the most popular
product traded by our customers, followed by the crude oil.

In the currency market, the price movement of USD/JPY in 2018
was in a slightly narrower range compared with that of 2017. The
highest and the lowest price levels of USD/JPY were observed to
be 114.55 and 104.56 respectively, a nearly 999-pips trading range
during 2018; this is compared with a price movement of 1,128-pips
in 2017, with highest level as 118.6 and the lowest as 107.32.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EUR/USD was mainly traded within in a price range of 1,339-pips,
which was slightly narrower than that of 2017. The highest level of
EUR/USD was traded at 1.2555, while the lowest level was seen at
1.1216. The price range of EUR/USD in 2017 was 1,751-pips, with
highest price at 1.2092 and lowest price at 1.0341.

The GBP/USD price moved in a wider range in 2018 than that in
2017. The highest and lowest prices were observed to be 1.4377
and 1.2478 respectively, a nearly 1,899-pips range. This can be
compared with the 1,671-pips range observed in 2017, between
highest level of 1.3657 and lowest level of 1.1986.

For CFD and commodities, the gold mainly traded within a price
range of $205.76 USD/ounce. The highest price of gold was traded
at $1,366.15 USD/ounce and the lowest at $1,160.39 USD/ounce
under the period of review. The 2017 price range, in comparison,
was $211.44 USD/ounce; with highest price at $1,357.61 USD/
ounce, and lowest at $1,146.17 USD/ounce.

The crude oil price range had become much wider in 2018,
compared with that of 2017. In 2017, the crude oil was traded in a
range of $18.46 USD/barrel, with highest price at $60.51 USD/barrel
and lowest at $42.05 USD/barrel. The price movement of crude
oil in 2018, however, was almost doubled to $34.54 USD/barrel,
with highest price traded at $76.9 USD/barrel and lowest traded at
$42.36 USD/barrel.

The retail margin FX trading market is highly competitive. This
includes international multi-product trading firms, other online
trading firms, and financial institutions. We expect the market to
remain very competitive in the foreseeable future. We are constantly
looking for ways to improve our customer service level and meet the
needs of our clients, by providing more trading opportunities in the
global financial markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

Total income

The total income of the Group decreased by approximately 8.5% to
approximately HK$471.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$514.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

A. Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income of
the Group decreased by approximately 6.1% to approximately
HK$372.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
from approximately HK$397.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. This was mainly due to the decreased
trading volume during the year ended 31 December 2018 as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2017.

B. Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group increased from
approximately HK$1.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately HK$3.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase was mainly attributable to
higher market volatility and successful dealing strategy.

C. Fee and commission income

The fees and commission income of the Group decreased
from approximately HK$108.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$56.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in commission earning as a result of lower
trading volume.

D. Other income

The Group recorded other income of approximately HK$38.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared
to other income of approximately HK$8.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, there was a fair value gain of
approximately HK$26.0 million on the embedded derivative
portion of convertible bonds issued on 12 February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded an exchange gain of approximately HK$9.4 million,
the recorded exchange gain for year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$5.4 million. This was mainly due
to the year-end translation of monetary assets denominated in
foreign currency into local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun
New Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Referral expenses and other charges

The referral expenses and other charges of the Group decreased
by approximately 41.3% to approximately HK$175.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$299.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the trading volume of the clients
referred by services providers.

Staff costs

The staff costs of the Group increased by approximately 78.6% to
approximately HK$101.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$56.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was mainly due to special bonus
paid and share options granted during the year.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by approximately 17.3%
to approximately HK$14.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$12.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was mainly due to the upgrade of
computer software for the year.

Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 6.2% to approximately HK$14.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$13.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase was mainly due to
the increased rental expenses of lease review in some offices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
decreased to approximately HK$84.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 from approximately HK$96.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly due to the
significant decrease in handling fee expenses which are partially
offset by the increase in marketing expenses and repair and
maintenance expenses compared with 2017.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved a net profit of
approximately HK$34.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 compared with the net profit of approximately HK$27.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The net profit margin for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately 7.3% (2017:
5.3%).

Excluding the fair value gain of approximately HK$26.0 million on
the embedded derivative portion of convertible bonds, in summary,
the decrease in profitability of the Group was primarily contributed by:

e decrease in transaction volume resulting in decreased trading
revenue, and

e increased expenses in a few main items due as disclosed
above.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year under review, the operations of the Group were
financed principally by equity capital, cash generated by the
Group’s business operations, the cash and bank deposits and
proceeds from convertible bonds issued by the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances held by the
Group amounted to HK$725.4 million (2017: HK$517.8 million).
There were no bank borrowings of the Group (2017: nil) and the
carrying amount of convertible bonds of the Company amounted to
HK$191.1 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (finance lease
obligations and convertible bonds) over the total shareholders’
equity as at 31 December 2018 was approximately 33.5% (2017:
0.05%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
gain of approximately HK$9.4 million (2017: HK$5.4 million). This
was mainly due to the year-end translation of monetary assets
denominated in foreign currency into local reporting currency by a
subsidiary of the Group in New Zealand. The foreign currency risk is
managed proactively by regular review of the currency positions in
the basket of currency mix. In order to minimize the exposure of the
Group to risk, the Group has hedge strategy based on prevailing
market conditions and working capital requirements of subsidiaries.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves, and convertible bonds
issued by the Company.

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued
7.5% convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$200 million to BC Global Fund SPC — BC Fintech
Fund SP and PA Investment Funds SPC for the account of PA High
Technology Fund SP (collectively the “Bondholders”).

The Bonds will expire at the second anniversary of the Issue Date.
The Company may extend the maturity date for a further term of one
year from the maturity date by giving notice in writing to all of the
Bondholders on or before the maturity date and with the prior written
consent from Bondholders of not less than 50% of the aggregate
principal amount of Bonds outstanding. In the event of extension of
the maturity date, the interest rate will be adjusted from 7.5% per
annum to 12% per annum.

The Bonds are convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Ordinary Shares”) at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.613 per share (subject to adjustment). The closing price of
the Ordinary Share was HK$0.500 on the Issue Date. Based on the
assumption of full conversion of the Bonds at such initial conversion
price, a total of 326,264,273 Ordinary Shares will be allotted and
issued by the Company. As at 31 December 2018, no Bonds were
converted into any Ordinary Shares by the Bondholders, and the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds remained as HK$200
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Directors consider that the issue of the Bonds would provide
strong capital support for the development of the Group’s business
and strengthen the Group’s capital base effectively after full
conversion of the Bonds.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds of approximately
HK$199.28 million. The Company currently intends to use the net
proceeds for investment in financial assets and working capital
purposes. The net proceeds from the issue of the bonds have been
utilized for trades with clients in foreign currencies, commodities
and products through the margin trading business.

Details of the issue of the Bonds were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 25 January 2018 and dated 12 February
2018 respectively.

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

During the year under review, there was no new products or
services launched.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group engaged a total of 53
employees (2017: a total of 76). Total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the period under review amounting
to approximately HK$101.7 million (2017: HK$56.9 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practices and are determined on the basis of performance and
experience of individual employees. The Group provides retirement
benefits in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the place where the staff is employed. The Company has adopted
a share option scheme pursuant to which the Directors and
employees of the Group are entitled to participate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$90.4 million (2017: HK$86.0
million) were used to secure the banking facilities and office lease
bonds. As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

We plan to:

1. expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
communities;

2. extend the range of our financial services and products;
3. further upgrade our online trading platform; and

4. develop the high net worth and sophisticated institutional
clients segment.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Stefan, aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible officers of KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited (*KVB HK”) and is also a director of KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries
of KVB Holdings, which do not belong to the Group.

Mr. Liu was appointed as the managing director of the Group in
March 2006 and the country manager of New Zealand and Australia
in August 2011. He was appointed as a Director of the Company on
9 November 2010 and is responsible for the overall management
and strategic development of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing director of
Aiming International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from August 1997
to August 2001 and was responsible for fostering the development
plan, structuring investment direction and strategy, liaising and
maintaining relationships with business partners and searching
for and maintaining public relationship with potential strategic
investors.

With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 16 years of experience in the
forex market which is relevant to the management, operation and
development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’'s degree
in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (KZ45MNERE A )
in July 1989 and completed the OPM program at Harvard Business
School in November 2018.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan, aged 42, is the director of global margin
business of the Group responsible for the management of
investment business of the Group, including foreign exchange,
commodities and equities business. He is currently one of the
responsible officers of KVB HK and KVB Kunlun Pty Limited (“KVB
AU”), and a director and managing principal of KVB Kunlun New
Zealand Limited (“KVB NZ”) and a director of KVB Kunlun Securities
(NZ) Limited. KVB AU and KVB NZ, all of which are subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Huang joined the Group in August 2002
as an executive accountant of KVB NZ and was responsible for
general accounting duties, book-keeping and financial reports.
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Mr. Huang was the manager of treasury strategy of KVB NZ and
was responsible for the implementation of its dealing system and
the day-to-day running of its global forex dealing operations and
all its associated financial management. Currently, he is also a
independent non-executive director of Marlborough Wine Estates
Group Limited, which is listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange.

Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
the Sun Yat-Sen University (FLUAREE) in June 1999, his master’s
degree in international business from the Auckland Institute of
Studies at St. Helens, New Zealand in December 2000 and his
graduate diploma in commerce from the University of Auckland in
May 2002. Mr. Huang became a chartered financial analyst of the
CFA Institute in September 2006. Mr. Huang has been a member of
the Institute of Directors in New Zealand since 2015. Mr. Huang was
appointed as a Director on 21 May 2018.

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 51, is the Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is also
the President and Group Chief Financial Officer of KVB Kunlun
Holdings Limited, a substantial Shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of SFO. Mr. Wong has extensive experience
in venture capital, corporate finance, business development,
legal, IT, financial and general management Currently, he is
an independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise
Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 3628), HongDa Financial
Holding Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1822), Progressive Path Group
Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1581), China Regenerative
Medicine International Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 8158) and
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited
(HKEx Stock Code: 286). Mr. Wong has also served as a director
of Adamas Finance Asia (London Stock Code: ADAM, listed on
London AIM market (previously known as China Private Equity
Investment Holdings Limited (“CPE”)). He was an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group
Company Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1355) from November 2016
to September 2018.
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Previously he was an executive director and the chief financial
officer of CPE. He was in charge of the private equity investment,
portfolio management, corporate finance activities including fund
raising and initial public offering, financial management, legal
services, IT and company secretarial work. Before that, Mr. Wong
was the chief financial officer for Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute Company Limited (“ASTRI”)
and held management responsibilities for its overall financial,
legal, IT, business development and corporate finance functions.
Before joining ASTRI, Mr. Wong was the vice president for Vertex
Management Pte Ltd. (now known as Vertex Venture Holdings
Ltd.),focusing on venture investment in communications, IT and
electronics sectors. Previously, he also held management positions
at Guangdong Investment Ltd., Transpac Capital Limited and
Accenture.

Mr. Wong earned his Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from the University of Hong Kong, and received his Master of
Science in investment management from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and Master of Science in Electronic
Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He is also a charter-holder
of Chartered Financial Analyst, United States of America and
a member of the Hong Kong Security Institute. Mr. Wong was
appointed as a Director on 21 May 2018.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 66, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was
later appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr.
McCoy is also a director of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd and LXL Capital
[l Limited. Mr. McCoy is also a director of other subsidiaries of
KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. McCoy worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as
an internal auditor from May 2002 to December 2003 and later
as the head of operations from January 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for managing the operations department of
the bank including treasury settlements, retail operations, loan
administration, office administration, trade finance and product
compliance in line with regulatory authorities and policies and
procedures of the bank and before that, Mr. McCoy worked at
Westpac Banking Corporation for over 30 years from February 1969
to April 2001 and last held the position of manager of operational
risk. With the previous and current positions held by Mr. McCoy
in the Group and other companies, Mr. McCoy has obtained over
46 years of combined experience in the financial services industry
which is relevant to the operation and development of the Group.
Mr. McCoy was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LI Jiong, aged 48, concurrently serves as the director of
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Company Limited which is
a substantial Shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO and CITIC Securities International USA, LLC.,
as well as a chief treasury officer and person-in-charge of the
treasury department of CITIC Securities Company Limited (“CITIC
Securities”, a shareholder of CITIC Securities Overseas Investment
Company Limited). After Mr. Li joined CITIC Securities in 1996, he
had served as the manager of the international cooperation division
of the information centre of China International Trust Investment
Corporation (renamed to CITIC Group Corporation), manager of
development department of CITIC International Cooperation Co.,
Ltd., manager of the bond department, deputy general manager
of the treasury department and person-in-charge of the treasury
department of CITIC Securities. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in International Finance from the University of International Business
and Economics in 1992 and a master’'s degree in MBA from
Tsinghua University in 2000. Mr. Li was appointed as a Director on
21 May 2018.
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Mr. XU Jianqgiang, aged 38, currently serves as a deputy head of
the equity derivatives business line of CITIC Securities and also
a head of Equity Derivatives at CITIC CCSA. After Mr. Xu joined
CITIC Securities in August 2005, he had served as an analyst of the
research department, product development manager of the equity
derivatives business line, head of trading of the equity derivatives
business line and head of equity derivatives of CITIC Securities
International Company Limited. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from Peking
University in 2003 and a master’'s degree in Mathematics from the
University of British Columbia in 2005. Mr. Xu was appointed as a
Director on 21 May 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin, aged 55, joined the Group in April 2011.
From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at Tianjin Jiandu
Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (KZEEHEEERAR A
A]) which was engaged in property and investment and she
was responsible for providing consultation services in project
financing, cooperation in public affairs and international investment
matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao also provided
consultation services in finance and investment related matters to
Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (KB FIi & 3%
EEBR/AF]) which was engaged in property and investment. From
July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao was appointed as the general
manager of the audit department of China CITIC Bank, Tianjin
branch and was responsible for managing the overall performance
of the audit department, implementing policies and procedures and
other management work. Ms. Zhao has over 26 years of experience
in accounting and auditing matters including but not limited to
financial analysis, financial management, asset management,
assessment and auditing of financial positions and involvement
in financial and auditing decision making process. Ms. Zhao
completed the course in economics and management organised
by the Party School of Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China (XA REH) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further
completed the course in business administration organised by
Nankai University (FFAZ) in September 1999 and obtained her
master’'s degree in arts in international relations in economy and
trade from The Flinders University of South Australia in October
2002. Ms. Zhao was assessed and awarded the qualification of
accountant by the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992.
Ms. Zhao was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 61, first joined the Group
in December 2003 as a senior consultant. In June 2005, he was
appointed as the joint Group managing director (group operations
and treasury) and managing director (designate proposed banking
division) and held that position until he left the Group in April 2008.
From August 2014 Mr Keyser is a director of Orkney Investment
Company which engages in equity, property and other investment
activity and from April 2016 he is a director of Highgate Property
Group, an ASIC authorised financial institution (AFSL), focussed on
managed investment property schemes in Australia. From March
2003 to February 2014, Mr. Keyser has been a director of Keyser
Merchant & Capital Finance (New Zealand) Limited which engaged
in the provision of consultation services and he was responsible for
managing all aspects of such company and acted as a consultant.
From July 1999 to August 2002, Mr. Keyser held the position of
group treasurer to Gensec Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From September
1996 to March 1997, Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou Building
Society Group of Companies as the group managing director
and was responsible for the operations of the group. From May
1990 to August 1992, Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing
director of Keyser Trading (Pty) Limited and from September
1992 to June 1999, he was appointed the managing director of
Keyser Merchant and Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser is a
chartered member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc.
and a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mr.
Keyser has over 26 years of experience in the financial industry. Mr.
Keyser obtained his bachelor’'s degree in industrial psychology, his
honours degree in economics (Cum laude) and his master’s degree
in economics (Cum laude) from the Rand Afrikaans University in
April 1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively. Mr. Keyser was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LIN Wenhui, aged 40, joined the Group in July 2011. Mr. Lin
is currently the audit director of Fujian Yango Holdings Group
Limited (18 2% £ BAR A R]). Mr. Lin was appointed as a
supervisor of supervisory committee in June 2017 and currently as
a chairman of the supervisory committee of Fujian Longking Co.,
Ltd. (SH. 600388) with effect from November 2017. With effect from
1 July 2014, Mr. Lin has temporarily been transferred to the board
of supervisors of SAC in the State Council for the inspection of
enterprises directly under the central government. He was an audit
manager of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Beijing from September
2011 to August 2016. From April 2009 to September 2011, Mr. Lin
was a manager of RSM China Certified Public Accountants (R

IBEEETAIEFT). Mr. Lin served as a project manager in the
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taxation and accounting services department of Reanda Certified
Public Accountants (FIZZEGFTEMEKAEREEAR) from
September 2004 to March 2006 and a manager assistant in the
audit department of the same firm from April 2006 to December
2008. From August 2002 to September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in
the accounting department of the head company of the Beijing
Shougang Oxygen Plant (Jt R & Hl%&%ER) which was engaged in
the production and sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial
enterprises. Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from the Harbin University of Commerce (FAEBREIZE AE) in July
2002 and master’s degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China in January 2018. Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting
professional from the Finance Bureau of Beijing (At R EB) in
June 2003 and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations
and was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance (B4
e stemER®ZE 8 ) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants recognised
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (FP = A IR X F1 3 B BX26) since
April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director on 16 July 2011.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun is the regional financial controller of New
Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang joined the Group
in December 2002 as the financial controller. Ms. Zhang has also
been a director of KVB NZ since May 2009. From December 1997
to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served as a senior accountant at HWI
Limited Chartered Accountants and was responsible for preparing
financial statements and tax returns and providing tax advice.
Ms. Zhang has over 21 years of experience in accounting matters
in New Zealand. Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor’s degree in
accounting from the Unitec Institute of Technology in April 2000.
Ms. Zhang has been a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand since January 2002.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen is the director and head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior sales
executive of margin forex of KVB AU. He has been the Responsible
Manager (RM) of the Australian Financial Services License (AFSL)
for the company since then. Mr. So is at present a director of KVB
AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So worked at The Hong Kong
Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo Securities Holdings Limited from
March 1994 to December 2002 and was responsible for providing
investment advice and dealing with private clients and retail clients.
He first joined The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited as a senior
investment consultant and thereafter served as a senior manager of
the global investment division of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited.
Mr. So has over 25 years of experience in advising clients on
financial products ranging from securities, indices and stock futures
and options, foreign exchanges and other derivatives financial
products. Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree (Economics)
from the University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992, and a diploma
in financial services issued by the Australian Financial Markets
Association in 2003.
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KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards of
corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders and other
stakeholders. It has continued and will continue to identify and
adopt the best corporate governance practices appropriate to the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied with all code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the (“Stock Exchange”),
except for the following deviations:

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Mr. Li Zhi Da retired as chairman of the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company and non-executive
Director after the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 21 May 2018 (the “2018 Annual General
Meeting”). After the retirement of Mr. Li, no individual was appointed
as chairman of the Board. The Board will keep on identifying
suitable candidate to assume duties as chairman of the Board as
soon as possible.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the independent non-
executive directors without the presence of other directors. The
then Chairman did not hold any meeting with the independent non-
executive Directors without the other Directors present in 2018 due
to the tight schedule of the Chairman.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Li Zhi
Da, the then Chairman and a non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the 2018 Annual General Meeting due to other commitment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the formulation of strategies
and policies, including an oversight of the management. The
management of the Company is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised nine Directors,
namely (i) Mr. Liu Stefan (as Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Huang
Songyuan and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (as Chief Financial Officer)
as executive Directors; (ii) Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy, Mr. Li
Jiong and Mr. Xu Jiangiang as non-executive Directors; and (jii) Ms.
Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui as
independent non-executive Directors. The Company has fulfilled
the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules that at least one
of the independent non-executive Directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a specific term, and his term of office is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. For all non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, the
term of them has been fixed for 3 years and they are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16 to
23 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In determining the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements as set out in
the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Chairman of
the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner,
while the Chief Executive Officer, supported by other members
of the Board and the senior management, is responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Group. The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer were assumed by Mr. Li Zhi Da, the then non-
executive Director, and Mr. Liu Stefan, an executive Director,
respectively. However, after the retirement of Mr. Li Zhi Da, no
individual appointed as Chairman of the Board.

The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Board
from time to time. The Board is looking for a candidate with suitable
knowledge, skills and experience is identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the vacancy of chairman/chairperson as
appropriate.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All the retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A circular which includes the biographical details of the
retiring Directors who stand for re-election together with the notice
of annual general meeting of the Company will be despatched to
the shareholders of the Company in due course.
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BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Group. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board held ten
board meetings and the Company held one general meeting, and
the attendance records of these meetings are set out below:
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Board Meetings AGM Held on

Attended/Eligible 21 May 2018

to Attend Attended

Ezged HER-2-NF
HERY,/ HER-t+-BREfZ

EERHERE BRREAEAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) BITRFE S (7T 485) 10/10 11
Mr. Huang Songyuan HEREE 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (R-FE-NFERA-F—HEZHF) T
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Emest (Chief Financial Officer) EREXE (BEHKE) 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (RZE-NNERA=1T—HEZHF) T
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman) FERE(ZE) 0/6 0/
(retired on 21 May 2018) (R-BE—-N\EFZA-+—HEHL)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy?t & 9/10 11
Mr. Li Jiong (appointed on 21 May 2018) EMRER=ZE-NFRAZT—HEZHF) 3/4 N/A
TN
Mr. Xu Jiangiang Rkt 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (RZE-NNERA=1T—HEZHF) T
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEELT 9/10 111
Mr. Comelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyser5t 4 10/10 1N
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR AE 9/10 n
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) during the year ended
31 December 2018 as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions in securities of the Company by the Directors.
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Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of the Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
arranged an in-house seminar for and provided relevant training
materials to the Directors. A summary of the records of training
received by the Directors is as follows:
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Training on Corporate
Governance Regulatory
Development and/or

Other Suitable Topics
FBRTXER EERRE
R SREAMEEEEZEZI
Executive Directors HMITES
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) LIREE ST (TT I AEE) v
Mr. Huang Songyuan FHMEIRAAE v
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chief Financial Officer) ZWRELEE (B EHFE) v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy 7t 4 4
Mr. Li Jiong FREIEAE v
Mr. Xu Jiangiang FFIESR ST v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEAL L v
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 v
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR S A v
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to evaluate
the performance and determine the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management of the Group, and evaluate
the performance and make recommendations on any other
employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus
Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings. Details of the attendance of
the Remuneration Committee meetings during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

HERE EEEHERE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HiEEZ LT (FE) 3/3
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert & 3/3
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR S A 2/3

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board,
amongst other things, distribution of the 2017 bonus payments for
the Directors and the senior management of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations to the Board regarding nomination of
suitable candidate to fill vacancies in the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee meetings are set out below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

HEREEEREERE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEEZ A (EE) 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserit A& 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui PRI W& o A 1/2

The Nomination Committee considered and reviewed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, and the
attendance records of the Board meetings, committees meetings
and general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Nomination Committee recommended the Board to approve the
proposed sequence for re-election of retiring Directors in 2019
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considers that
the existing policy for nomination, selection and recommendation
for directorship are suitable.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted a board diversity
policy which stated that the Board sees diversity as a wide concept
and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to skills, regional and industry experience, background,
race, gender and other qualities. In informing its perspective on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

The Nomination Committee shall consider, among others, the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

. Character and integrity;

e  Personal attributes including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, experience and expertise that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy, and the ability
to provide insights and practical wisdom based on those
attributes;

e Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member, other directorships, memberships of various
committees and significant commitments;

o For independent non-executive directors to be appointed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

e  Ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and contribute to the Board’s working relationship
with senior management of the Company;

e  Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

e Any other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience.
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A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking
into account diversity (including gender diversity).

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee will report annually, in the corporate governance report,
on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives, and
monitor the implementation of this policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 18 December 2012 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, nominate and monitor external auditors and provide
advice and comments to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr.
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review
of this annual report and financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The attendance records of the Audit Committee
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
below:
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Attended/EIigibIe to Attend
RE EEREEREY

Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MBS E (E/E) 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin fii=KE g 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management and the auditors of the Company
their audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, legal and regulatory compliance, and
financial reporting matters.

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted. The
primary duties of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board.

The CG Committee consists of four members, namely, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr. Lin
Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman of the CG
Committee. All members are independent non-executive Directors,
except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CG Committee
held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the CG Committee
meetings are set out below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

RE EEREERE
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert &

(Chairman) (F/%) 2/2
Mr. Liu Stefan BIMRFE LA 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin iR+ 1/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui PRI HE S A& 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CG Committee
considered and reviewed the progress on the implementation of
the Group’s corporate governance framework. The CG Committee
also reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company. Besides, the CG Committee considered and reviewed
the environmental, social and governance reporting proposal. The
CG Committee considers that the existing policies and practices of
corporate governance of the Company are suitable.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 62 to 68 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s assets and shareholders’ interests, and, with the
Audit Committee, for reviewing areas of risk and uncertainty, the
operation and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
control and the procedures by which these are monitored.
The internal audit department of the Company (“Internal Audit
Department”) is delegated to ensure and maintain sound internal
control functions by monitoring such internal control systems
and procedures constantly so as to ensure that they can provide
reasonable assurance against misstatement or loss and to manage
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The internal audit
function is independent of the operating businesses of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage but not eliminate business risk, to help safeguard the
Group’s assets against fraud and other irregularities, and to give
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss. In addition, it should provide a basis for the
maintenance of proper and fair accounting records and assist in the
compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed all material
internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control. It also reviewed with the Audit Committee and the
information from the Internal Audit Department in respect of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems, adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and satisfied that they

were effective and in compliance with the Group’s policies.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).
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The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the following table:
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AR LUK BRI B RAEE R RIEEZR
BEN/ BNOEERG#HNTX

2018 2017

—ZE—N\HF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Audit services EAZIRTE 3,223 2,966
Non-audit services IEEZIRTE 302 679
Total B R 3,525 3,645

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders and
management.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The dividend payout
ratio shall be determined or recommended, as appropriate, by
the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account of
the operating results, cash flow, financial condition and capital
requirements of the Group, and subject to:

e the articles of association of the Company;

e the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands; and

. any other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company would like to call for an extraordinary
general meeting, please make a written requisition to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong from time to time, making
attention to “The Board of Directors and the Company Secretary”.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company. If shareholders wish to do
S0, they may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting
as stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 or by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on The Stock
Exchange website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) are posted on the
Company'’s corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon
as practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, there have not been any significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

together with its

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2018 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 24 June 2019 to Thursday, 27 June 2019, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
2019 Annual General Meeting, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday,
21 June 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Review and Future Prospect

Since the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on 3 July 2013, the Company has been implementing its
business plans to accomplish its business objectives. A review of
the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are provided in the section of
“Statement from the Chief Executive Officer” on pages 5 to 7 of this
annual report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 15 of this
annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to its business and some
are affected by the external environment. The Group’s major risks
are summarized below.

(1) Financial risks

The Group’s principal business activities are exposed to
a variety of key financial risks including credit risk, market
risk (such as interest rate risk and foreign currency risk),
and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid key risks and
risk mitigation measures are set out in “Financial Risk
Management” in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(2) Macro-economic environment

Adverse macro-economic changes may affect the business
environment, which may in turn affect the operating results. It is
therefore important that the Group is able to keep track of such
changes of macro-economic environment and swiftly adjusts
its operating policy and business plan under different market
conditions.
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(3) Information technology systems

Financial services sector is highly dependent on information
technology systems and networks. Any material disruption
or slowdown of our IT systems, including a disruption or
slowdown caused by our failure to successfully upgrade
our systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks could
cause a loss of data or operation interruption. Therefore, we
invest continuously in our IT systems so as to keep up with the
technology security.

The above is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group. These
may change over time as new risks and uncertainties
emerge and others cease to be of concern. The Directors will
constantly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and may
change or modify plans against the changing market condition
to avert or minimise the risks so as to attain sustainable
business growth of the Group.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing a
green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff. The Group has implemented internal recycling
programme for office consumables such as toner cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and branch premises where applicable, such as taking initiatives to
reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of websites and online
version of corporate communications. As regards reduction of
power consumption, lighting, air- conditioners and office equipment
will be turned off when not in use.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating resources
to ensure the Group’s ongoing compliance with the updated
applicable rules and regulations. During the year under review,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group’s success lies also on the support from key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, bankers, service
providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human
resources management is to reward and recognise our employees
by providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives, and opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

Customers

The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset
growth as well as long term profitability.

Bankers

To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access, the
Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers and
has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when necessary.

Service Providers

The Group’s good relationships with its key service providers
are important in provision of effective and efficient services to
our customers and meeting business challenges and regulatory
requirements. The key service providers comprise system
and equipment vendors, external consultants which provide
professional services, and other business partners which provide
value-added services to the Group.
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Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’ rights
and our investor relations can be found in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 38 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account and retained earnings of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company subject to
the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As at 31 December 2018, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$369 million (2017: approximately HK$382
million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is approximately
59.20% of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 25.67%.

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 33.05% of the total sales of the Group and the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 23.18%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or their associates (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 2.17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Huang Songyuan
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
(Retired on 21 May 2018)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy
Mr. Li Jiong (Appointed on 21 May 2018)
Mr. Xu Jiangiang
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, one-third of the Directors shall retire but are eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company. Details of the Directors retiring and subject to re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
contained in a circular of the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be despatched in due course.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors have entered into any service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the
end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Securities” below, at no time during the year or at the
end of the year has been/was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company'’s Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any business
or interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the convertible bonds and share option scheme of the
Company as disclosed below, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued 7.5%
convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$200 million (the
“Bonds”) to two individuals. The Bonds will become mature on
the second anniversary from the Issue Date. The Company may
extend the maturity date subject to the terms of the subscription
agreement.

Further information on the Bonds are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The net proceeds from the issuance have been used for investment
in financial assets and general working capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on

3 June 2013. A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(@

(b)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract, retain
and motivate talented Participants (as defined below) to strive
for future developments and expansion of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite the
following persons as participants (the “Participants”) of the
Scheme:

(i) any executive or non-executive Director including any
independent non-executive Director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i) any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(iii) any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or
corporate management) and other adviser to any member
of the Group;

(iv) any supplier of goods and/or services to the Group; or

(v) any other person whom the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the

Board would take into account such factors as the Board may
at its discretion consider appropriate.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Basis for determining the exercise price and acceptance of
offer

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for shares granted
under the Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board at
its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an option is granted; (ii) the average
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date on which an option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum in any currency as the
Board may determine) by way of consideration for the grant.

Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (the
“General Scheme Limit”) unless further shareholders’ approval
is obtained in general meeting, provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and further to
be granted in any 12-month period (including both exercised
and outstanding options) and in the 12-month period up to and
including the acceptance date (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) shall not in isolation or aggregate
exceed 1% of the shares, and any grant of option which would
result in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and any
associate thereof abstaining from voting.

()

(d)

(e)
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(9)

(h)

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing on the first business day from the date of grant
of option and expiring at the close of business on a date to be
determined and notified by the Directors which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated at the
time of granting the option, there is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option to
any qualifying participants.

Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

On 19 August 2015, the Company granted share options to
95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

On 29 December 2016, the Company granted share options
to 95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
11,750,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

On 22 March 2018, the Company granted share options to
82 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
17,550,000 share options were granted to seven Directors.

Details of the movements of the options granted under the
Scheme are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe for the shares of the
Company under the Scheme.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were (i) required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Director contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Interests in shares of the Company:
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Approximate %

Number of shares/

of the number

Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
s,/ HERTRE
EEnL 54 HERGOEE Ay  HEABYEIH
Shares Options
& 5 Bk
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
Mr. Liu Stefan Beneficial owner 9,520,000 18,000,000 27,520,000 1.35%
(Chief Executive Officer)
Bk K (TTECAE ) EREAA
Mr. Huang Songyuan Beneficial owner - 6,850,000 6,850,000 0.34%
HERESE ERBEBA
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest Beneficial owner - 2,050,000 2,050,000 0.10%
(Chief Financial Officer)
BERBEE(ERUFKE) ERERA
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.10%

Stephen Gregory McCoy %t &

I

BEDBEEA
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Number of shares/

Approximate %
of the number

Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
PR,/ HEBRTRS
BEEpA ogvi) HEROHA Ay HEABYEIH
Shares Options
B 5 BRE
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
Ms. Zhao Guixin Beneficial owner 200,000 700,000 900,000 0.04%
HEEBZL EnEAA
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Beneficial owner - 700,000 700,000 0.03%
Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 BEmEAA
Mr. Lin Wenhui Beneficial owner 200,000 700,000 900,000 0.04%
MRS & EnEAA
Note: i

1. Those options were granted on 19 August 2015, 29 December 2016 1.

and 22 March 2018 respectively under the Scheme.

o opu—

=

BZEBRESIIR-_FE—AFNA+NIH =
NF+— A+ NAR=—ZF—NF=H
T HREZ AR -



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified

DIRECTORS REPORT
o 3

FERRRERSG - MERGORES 2#EE
RRAE

BARRBEERNEBITHRASHM  R_=
—NEFE+_A=+—H8 U TFTAT(&ERFZ
EEXREETEHABRIN REQRA RS X
FERARL D R A SRR B E (E B AR E
% M BAE G B EEXVEB 235 BB 2 & X [ 24X
NRIFEBE RN AR A IRIEE S RS &0
FE3BCIEMEFNE ML Em T RS
NEREZ TS SOAR -

to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Number of shares/
underlying shares held
FiERe RERGHE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
RERT
R&O#E
TERRER L) R4 PTERE wy BRED K
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interests in controlled 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
(“CITIC Securities”) corporation (Note 1)
RETFROERAR ([FEEF])  RREHEBRER (Hi71)
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Beneficial owner 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
Company Limited
PRI EIMIERR AR EREAA
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
("KVB Holdings”) (Note 2)
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited EREBA
(TKVB Holdings]) (#/7#2)
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Note 2) Interests in controlled 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
corporation
FEERE W22 IR EHEE 2 5
Calypso International Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co., Limited (Note 3)
Calypso International Investment ERBEBA
Co., Limited (#7:£3)
HNA Group (International) Company Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%

Limited (Note 3)

SREE (ER) BRAR (i3

corporation

REEHEE 2 s
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Number of shares/
underlying shares held
PR,/ HERGHE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
HERT
RE#E
FERRER 54 i) fTERER 2y BREDH
HNA Group Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
corporation
BSBAERRR (#73) REEGNER 2 5
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co., Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
BEAREERERAR (Hi23) REZHER R
Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co. Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
REERR(HR) BRAR (H:23) REEHEE 2 5
Tang Dynasty Development Co. Ltd. Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
(Note 3) corporation
BREBRRERDA (H73) REEGNER 2 5
Pan- American Aviation Holding Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Company (Note 3) corporation
Pan-American Aviation Holding Company W12 #AE 2 ##
(Hrit3)
Cihang Sino-Western Cultural and Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Educational Exchange Foundation corporation
Limited (Note 3)
EMRAAXHINEREEBRAR  RIEFEE B
(Hrit3)
Notes: Hiat -

1. As CITIC Securities is entitled to control over one-third of the voting 1.
power at general meetings of CITIC Securities Overseas Investment
Company Limited, CITIC Securities is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the entire 1,200,310,001 shares held by CITIC Securities

Overseas Investment Company Limited.

RS RE 5 B R E A 5 F N R E B IR
RAJZBRRAE LHEHEB=22 —RE
1 IRIEESRBEANRG - 15 6 5 8% 35 73
RA GG 5 FINE B R R A58 69 £ B8

1,200,310,001 8 AR 17 #E 5 1# 7 ©



2. AsMr. Li Zhi Da is entitled to control over one-third of the voting power
at general meetings of KVB Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to
be interested in the entire 300,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.

3. Calypso International Investment Co., Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of HNA Group (International) Company Limited, which was
in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA Group Co., Ltd.. HNA Group Co.,
Ltd. was held as to 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co.,
Ltd.. Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. was in turn held
as to 50% by Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.. Sheng
Tang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd. was held as to 65% by Hainan
Province Cihang Foundation and 35% by Tang Dynasty Development
Co., Ltd. which was in turn 98% held by Pan-American Aviation
Holding Company, which is wholly held by Cihang Sino-Western
Cultural and Educational Exchange Foundation Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest in
options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which any member of the Group was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2018.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance (including provision of
services) between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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2 HIRFEEEAE FREIEEIKVB HoldingsREA

B LB =5 —RRERE  IRIEESF KA
B1E0) - 1% #8188 ARKVB Holdings% & #% 5 &9
300,000,0008% % 17+ HE G 1z ©

3. Calypso International Investment Co.,Limited

BERTEE (BER) ER A G 2 EMNE LA
1AL 5 B (BIRR) B R 2 7] 15 /i 5 B B R
NEJHEFI1.09% e o BHIEBEBR L A5G
BREERERGIFFE70%E s TEHX
E1ERR B R 2 5] B 25 JE IR (FOF) BIR 2 Al
BE0% 1 m o B ERE CFi) AR A ]G
BEM A BEL BT H65%Em X B 5 FEE
BRANAIFFEI5%Em  BEERERAAIH
Pan-American Aviation Holding Company#% &
98%1# 75 + MiPan-American Aviation Holding
Company i Z iR G 5 XU HE L B HRA
B2 EHE °
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are disclosed in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Sharing of Office premises

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015, the Company and KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited
(“KVB Holdings”) entered into an existing renewed office licence
agreement (the “Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement”) on
18 December 2015 for a term from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2018. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement for the years ended 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
HK$4 million, HK$4.5 million and HK$5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated
1 December 2017, the Company and KVB Holdings entered into a
supplemental agreement to the Existing Renewed Office Licence
Agreement on 1 December 2017 to revise certain terms of the
Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement and the revised
annual caps for the services provided by the Company. For the
services provided by the Company for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018, the revised annual caps are HK$4 million, HK$3.7 million and
HK$1.9 million. For the services provided by KVB Holdings for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018, the revised annuals cap were nil, HK$0.8
million and HK$3.1 million respectively.

EEEN

FA - BHEREIEREERRT 2 HRAEME
REDEBMA LKA BEMEL -

BBLXS

AEEHE_Z—N\FF+A=1T—HILFE
CERBEH AR ZEBENIRE M HRERM T
30 ° BN ZER HIMERK LR A2 &R E
R HFBWT -

HARLEWHE

BARATERA-E—RF+-_A+N\BZ
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Limited ([KVB Holdings ) R—ZF —RAF+ =
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([REKLEER A AERFTERZED @ BRA
—E-RXF—A—BRBE=ZE—N\F+=A
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As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018, the Company and KVB Holdings entered into
an renewed office licence agreement on 28 December 2018 (the
“Renewed Office Licence Agreement”), for a term from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021. For the services provided by the
Company for each of the three years ending 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the annual caps of
the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Office Licence
Agreement are HK$2.2 million, HK$2.3 million and HK$2.4 million.
For the services provided by KVB Holdings for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, the annual caps are HK$3.3 million, HK$3.4 million
and HK$3.6 million respectively.

Cash Dealing Services

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2016, the Company and KVB Kunlun Global Capital Limited (“KVB
GC”), a company incorporated in BVI and is wholly owned by KVB
Holdings, entered into an existing renewed cash dealing agreement
(the “Existing Renewed Cash Dealing Agreement”) on 17 June
2016 for a term from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2018. Pursuant
to the Existing Renewed Cash Dealing Agreement, the Company
shall provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide, to KVB GC and
its subsidiaries (“GC Group”) the cash dealing services including
the provision of the exchange of currencies (“KVB Services”) by
the Group; and KVB GC shall provide, or procure its subsidiaries to
provide, to the Group, foreign exchange conversion and settlement
services (“GC Services”). The maximum revenue (net of realized/
unrealized gain/loss) to be recorded by the Company in respect of
the KVB Services for the six months ended 31 December 2016 and
two years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
HK$7.1 million, HK$20 million and HK$20 million respectively.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018, the Company and KVB GC entered into an
renewed cash dealing agreement (the “Renewed Cash Dealing
Agreement”) on 28 December 2018 for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021, under which the Company, together with
its subsidiaries, would provide cash dealing services including the
provision of exchange of currencies at a rate determined at the
time of the transaction to KVB Holdings’ group. The annual caps
for transactions contemplated under the Renewed Cash Dealing
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2021 in
respect of revenue (in terms of net of realised gains, realised losses,
unrealised gains and unrealised losses) are HK$10 million.

Information Technology Services
Software Licence

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015, a software licence agreement (the “Software
Licence Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and
Banclogix System Co., Limited (“Banclogix”) on 18 December
2015, pursuant to which Banclogix shall grant the Company a three-
year licence for certain software to enable the Group to, inter alia,
use the routing service and data integration layer developed by
Banclogix. The licence fee payable under the Software Licence
Agreement was a one-off payment of HK$3.5 million.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
April 2016, the Company and Banclogix entered into an existing
information technology services agreement (the “Existing
Information Technology Services Agreement”) for a term from
19 April 2016 to 31 December 2018. Pursuant to the Existing
Information Technology Services Agreement, Banclogix would
from time to time provide software development and maintenance
services, information technology infrastructure project management
services and information technology infrastructure maintenance
services to the Group. The aggregate annual caps payable by the
Group to Banclogix under the Software Licence Agreement and the
Existing Information Technology Services Agreement for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018 were HK$20 million, HK$19 million and HK$20
million, respectively.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
September 2016, the independent shareholders approved the
first supplemental agreement dated 12 August 2016 to revise
the existing aggregate annual caps under the Software Licence
Agreement and the Existing Information Technology Services
Agreement. The revised aggregate annual caps payable by the
Group to Banclogix for each of the three years ended 31 December
2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were HK$28.5
million, HK$26.0 million and HK$24.5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 27 March 2018, the
independent shareholders approved the second supplemental
agreement dated 12 February 2018 to revise the existing aggregate
annual caps under the Existing Information Technology Services
Agreement as revised by the first supplemental agreement.
The revised aggregate annual caps payable by the Group to
Banclogix for each of the three years ended 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were HK$28.5 million,
HK$26.0 million and HK$37.5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 28 December 2018,
the Company and Banclogix entered into a renewed information
technology services agreement (the “Renewed Information
Technology Services Agreement”) for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021. Pursuant to the Renewed Information
Technology Services Agreement, Banclogix would from time to
time provide software development and maintenance services,
information technology infrastructure project management services
and information technology infrastructure maintenance services
to the Group. The aggregate annual caps payable by the Group
to Banclogix under the Renewed Information Technology Services
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 are HK$25 million
respectively.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions have

been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
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(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors
must provide a letter to the Board confirming whether anything
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the cap.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,364,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,313,000).

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Stefan
Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ErEReRHEEERAT

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 69 to 179, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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The key audit matter identified in our audit was the leveraged
trading system and controls.

Key Audit Matter
Leveraged trading system and controls

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income is a key
revenue stream for the Group, which contributed to over 79% of the
Group’s total income.

The Group’s leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
business and the recognition and calculation of the leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income are dependent on the
design and operational effectiveness of key Information Technology
(“IT”) controls over the trading system given the significant amount
of transactions that are automatically processed in the systems.
Therefore, controls over the trading system are a key focus in our
audit.

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We identified, evaluated and tested the following key IT controls of
the Group’s leveraged trading system:

1. IT General Controls Testing

Assessed IT control environment including examining the
framework of governance over the Group’s IT organisation and
the key IT general controls over the trading system covering
access to system and data, program changes, program
development, and IT operations.

2. IT Application Controls Testing

Assessed key automated control procedures, key system
generated reports from the trading system and calculations
within the automated applications through comparing the
source data to the underlying trade details and performing
recalculation on a sample basis.

The results of the audit testing performed supported our ability to
place reliance on the IT dependencies of the leveraged trading
system.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ Report, Corporate Information, Statement
from the Chief Executive Officer, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Biographies of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Governance Report and Financial Summary (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is FU, Ho Kee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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D STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 2 T A 2R AR

e year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FHET &I
Leveraged foreign exchange and BRI HNE 2 H At 22 Z U A
other trading income ] 372,940 397,025
Cash dealing income B2 ZA 5 3,309 1,136
Fee and commission income A kB A 56,446 108,775
Other income N 6 38,416 7,996
Total income PN 471,111 514,932
Referral expenses and other charges BN S R E & A (175,772) (299,247)
Staff costs 8 TR 7 (101,669) (56,931)
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERRETER
equipment and amortisation of m B R
intangible assets 12& 13 (14,681) (12,521)
Lease payments under land and 3t RAEFEEE R
buildings (14,228) (13,395)
Administrative and other operating TR R E b 48 8 F 2
expenses 8 (84,576) (96,404)
Total expenses sz 4858 (390,926) (478,498)
Operating profit Ak A 80,185 36,434
Finance cost Bl & AN (28,428) (1,415)
Profit before tax B A0 A1 4 A 51,757 35,019
Income tax expense FriS B F 2 9 (17,508) (7,665)
Profit for the year F [ i 1) 34,249 27,354
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Ha2m(BX) W
income
Item that may be reclassified to profit — AJGEEZ S IEE 15752 1B H
or loss
Currency translation difference EshE N =5 (15,105) 3,858
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEEME2E (FAX) kS
income for the year, net of tax (FOBRFRIA) (15,105) 3,858 .
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ #
&
Total comprehensive income for the year £ E 2 M W 54258 19,144 31,212 n
}‘:\’,\/
11
Earnings per share for profit FEXATREFEA .
attributable to the equity holders of EiRER 2z 5 RER L\Z
the Company for the year =3
— Basic — ER T
(HK cents per share) (FRAN) 11 1.68 1.35 E[K
=
— Diluted — 8 iij
(HK cents per share) (FRAN) 11 1.44 1.35 <B
B
it

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated SE75F 1798 MM T K ZEE A M BEREK D
financial statements. — &5 o



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
R AUEAR

As at 31 December 2018 R=—ZE— \F+=-_H=+—H

2018 2017
—B-N\E T tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
&1z FET T IT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - RE R 12 9,454 9,719
Intangible assets mIEE 13 43,835 34,496
Deferred tax assets IEER IR E = 19 1,719 1,367
Total non-current assets FREBEEHAE 55,008 45,582
Current assets hEEE
Other receivables, prepayments H {th fE UL 5RIE
and deposits BN RIE RIEE 14 9,692 11,824
Tax prepayment TEFAIE 4,625 11,211
Derivative financial instruments PTTEemIA 15 67,400 139,567
Balances due from agents FE U IR 4 B 16 21,751 88,551
Cash and bank balances and R RIBITHERU K
client trust bank balances RE{ErLIRITAEA S 17 980,766 1,104,050
Total current assets hEEEHAE 1,084,234 1,355,203
Total assets EEHE 1,139,242 1,400,785
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERkEE
g Equity R
Share capital P& 2N 23 20,333 20,333
Reserves & 347,541 365,190
Retained earnings R & F 203,832 161,704
Total equity SRR 571,706 547,227

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated 57521798 MM T K 2 S 434 B ISR &R 1Y
financial statements. — &5 o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
e EEAEE

As at 31 December 2018 R —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FHT BT
Current liabilities REBEE

Finance lease obligations A T E R IE 18 42 47
Tax payable FE T IE 2,633 -
Other payables and accrued liabilities ~ HEMEN KRB ETE S 20 31,643 53,272
Derivative financial instruments PTTHEemIA 15 5,374 30,646
Clients’ balances =P 21 331,731 766,182
Total current liabilities REEEAEE 371,423 850,147

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Finance lease obligations Rl E TH B A E 18 146 205
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEE & 19 4,902 3,206
Convertible bonds A # g & 5 22 191,065 =
Total non-current liabilities FREEEETE 196,113 3,411
Total liabilities SEAE 567,536 853,558
Total equity and liabilities BEXAREE 1,139,242 1,400,785

The financial statements on pages 69 to 179 were approved by the S6E9E179E MBI BHERE R —_ZE— LE= A
Board of Directors on 18 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf + \BEEZEeitERBIATEERKASEE

Liu Stefan Wong Yiu Kit Ernest =
e £33 &

&

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated 57521798 KM T K 2 SR A BB HhER M
financial statements. — &5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EC

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BiE2—=— /\F+_A =+ HIEFE

Share  Currency

Share Share Capital option translation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
BRE g%

Bx  ROEE EARE e EifRf REEN RERAE
Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000

i3 TEr  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TER  TEx

(Note 24)
(Hi#24)
At 1 January 2017 W_E—+&—f—-H 20,332 180,464 171,892 17,692 (9,766) 133,903 514,517
Comprehensive income 2EKRE
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - 27,354 27,354
Other comprehensive income FREMPARE
for the year - - - - 3,858 = 3,858
20,332 180,464 171,892 17,692 (5,908) 161,257 545,729
Share option scheme BiREsrE 2 - - - 1,032 - 436 1,468
Issuance of new ordinary shares  {T{E B AR ERE 1T 2
upon exercise of share option T E &M 1 29 = (1) = 11 30

Balance at 31 December 2017 R=B-t&F+=R
=t+-He&sH 20,333 180493 171,892 18713 (5908) 161,704 547,227

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RABBHBREER

FOREE - - - - - (1,040) (1,040)
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F—A—H 20,333 180,493 171,892 18,713 (5,908) 160,664 546,187
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Profit for the year EEET - - - - - 34,249 34,249
Other comprehensive expense FEAMEZERY
for the year - - - - (15,105) - (15,105)

20,333 180,493 171,892 18,713 (21,013) 194,913 565,331
Share option scheme EiEsE 2 - - - (2,544) - 8,919 6,375

Balance at 31 December2018 ~ R=F-NE+=f
—t-He2&sH 20,333 180,493 171,892 16,169 (21,013) 203,832 571,706

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated 57521798 MM T K 2 S 434 B ISR R 1Y
financial statements. — &5 o
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ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —Z— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F — T4
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
g FET TA&T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EEFFEBRERE
Profit before tax R A5 AT 4 A 51,757 35,019
Adjustments for: TR
Depreciation of property, plant and M - HE K&
equipment and amortisation of WEREREE#E
intangible assets 12& 13 14,681 12,521
Interest income B WA 6 (4,945) (2,661)
Interest expense B 28,428 =
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEERNEER 6 - 438
Impairment of intangible asset ;& E 2 RE 8& 13 2,937 1,730
Share option expenses HE R A 7&26 6,375 1,468
Fair value gain on the embedded AR ES TR A
derivative portion of convertible AALTETEZMD 2
bonds AV & 6&22 (26,042) -
Amortisation of deferred losses AR E SR D
on conversion component of iR A B 18 5
convertible bonds 6&22 1,982 -
Cash flows from operating activities BB EBAIK S
before working capital changes EEIRRERE 75,173 48,515
(Increase)/decrease in pledged time B &I FE HFER
deposits (3 hn) R (4,344) 72,905
Decrease/(increase) in client trust BEEERITE R
bank balances wWA (g ) 330,514 (173,732)
Decrease/(increase) in balances due  FEUR R IR 4564
from agents A (1) 66,226 (30,995)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative PTHEEmMT A
financial instruments A (3 ) 46,895 (34,591)
Decrease/(increase) in other H i & W FRIE -
receivables, prepayments and TR RIE ik E
deposits A () 2,610 (1,279)
(Decrease)/increase in clients’ BE&# L) /1 :%
balances (434,451) 292,278 &
(Decrease)/increase in other payables £ fib & 1~ F 18 K2 g 51 \\
and accrued liabilities B&E D) 1 (27,464) 21,487 \H\
I
Cash generated from operations KERSIRS 55,159 194,588 é
Income tax paid B FF 18 B (6,860) Shbiis) =
ﬂ%
I
Net cash generated from operating KL EE TSR ERE f,fj
activities 48,299 182,870 ;%
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ :
it

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated SE75F 1798 MM T K ZEE A M BEREK D
financial statements. — &5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 == — A\ +—-_A=1+HIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT 4
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
g FET BT
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHMBEESRE
Interest received 2 x| & 4,427 2,991
Purchase of property, plant and BEME KEK
equipment and intangible assets RiENEREE 12& 13 (27,888) (19,684)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBEEEMSKIA - 25
Net cash used in investing activities HEESFTAR S F5 (23,461) (16,668)
Cash flows from financing activities METEBREBEESRE
Net proceeds from issue of shares A% 10 21T FT 15 IRV E 58 - 30
Repayment of finance lease EERERERE
obligations 25 (54) (41)
Interest paid B4 F A (7,468) =
Repayment of borrowing EEEE 25 - (55,835)
Proceeds from issuance of TR MR E S P15 A
convertible bonds 228 25 200,000 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBTE S (FTA)
financing activities BeFHE 192,478 (55,846)
Net increase in cash and cash HEREESEZEY
equivalents 3 nFE A 217,316 110,356
Cash and cash equivalents at FYHReRRSEEY
beginning of year 431,736 318,916
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, E R E ) BF5E
net (14,004) 2,464
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRREESEEY
at end of year 17 635,048 431,736

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

11

1.2

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 9 November 2010 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s immediate parent is CITIC
Securities Overseas Investment Company Limited (the
“CITIC Securities Overseas”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is CITIC
Securities Company Limited (the “CITIC Securities”), a
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading, cash dealing business, and other services.

As at 31 December 2018, 59.03% of the total issued
shares of the Company are held by CITIC Securities
Overseas, 14.75% of issued shares are held by KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited and the remaining 26.22% of
issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

Significant event

Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into by
the Company on 25 January 2018, the Company issued
convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 on 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”).
The convertible bonds entitled the holders to convert them
into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.613 (the “Conversion Price”) per share of
the Company at any time from the day following one year
from the Issue Date up to the fifth business day immediately
before the second anniversary of the Issue Date (the
“Maturity Date”) and bear interest at 7.5% per annum.
Unless previously redeemed, converted or cancelled, the
Company has to redeem the convertible bonds on Maturity
Date at 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together
with accrued interest, if any. See Note 22.
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ARARIRZZTE—ZEF+—ANABR
BRESHE RREF2E (KRE
RIEETEI—NAS—E B =550 1
HERHSdMKXILAERRERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S1
A 3 0 5 e Mt R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

EESHBERME

REZERAVEREARANEESS
BRI © Br =B HREAI - ZFHXR
—HBEARFBEZIEFE -

2.1

mELEE

RRAFREKBAR (S AEE )
AR A MR IRIBAEERER
smE R ([ HHREEL D)
MEBRRMED (F6228) ZEM AR
FEMREL o #R B MBS MERTIIRE L R
AmE - WRBHRRAARERF AR
NERMEERSRAB(BETET
B)PTERT - MARETIER -

RET B BB IMEERRE N
BHMERARAE THEREHE - &
BEERAAREN S BREARE
AT o 0P K= E A B S e R
BE - HBEREMGAHVBEREME
BEANELE - EMF4REE -



THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEBEE)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FKEBERARIFTAT RASIE5TER

Group

The Group has applied the following standards AEEER=ZE—N\F—H—H

and amendments for the first time for their annual bz FEREHEEREAT

reporting period commencing 1 January 2018: HI R KA ET AN ¢

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; o FHBMBHmELEDZEINR

BMEE]

e HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with o FHBUBWmEEREISR
Customer; ===y ol NIk

e Classification and Measurement of Share- e UURMNMABERINORZH
based Payments Transactions — Amendments DERFTE BBV BRE
to HKFRS 2; R FE25 (IBRTA)

e Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle; and o T NFEE_FT—RFHE

2 FEHE R

e Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions o REF2HRINERZ MIEN
and Advanced Consideration. KB

The impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 is set out in Note BN B S I AR S XE R S595% 2 B H

2.2 and all other standards and amendments listed Bt 5E2.2 - i ki B A H At 22 Bl R AS ET A

above did not have material impact on the amounts HBETEEERN SR ESEATLE - Jh

recognised in prior periods and are not expected to TEE T S ANEIE R AR R AR E A E R

significantly affect the current and future periods. Z o

&

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHHEBE(E)

21 RBEE(E)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) 5K ERAY B FT2E B R 22 FE

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2018

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT

adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2018 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’, was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors
will not significantly change. The standard will affect
primarily the accounting for Group’s operating
leases. At 31 December 2018, the Group had
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$37.4 million (2017: HK$19.2 million), see Note
31.

LI SR MR EC R,
BR-ZE-—N\F+-_A=1t—8H
¥l BRI I R 58 il AR S R AN AR
I IR F IR - NEE B % FH
A RRENEENGRIIRT
X o

B BHREERFE165E[HE
ERZE—RE—HEM - HR
HEEHENREREENFT=
S E MR - EH BT
FMEHEAREERBERANRE
R IRIBEFER] - BE (HEHE
EMERE MZHHESN S
BEAERAR AR EEAR
MEHMEREEEE - HEANE
FTEREFTEHEANEE o RE
A EELEAREEKEEHERN
@ RE - R T N\FE+ A
=+—H  NEEFTAHEL
& 70 & A #£37,400,0007% 7T (=
=T —+4 : 19,200,000/ 7T) © R
Ft5EST ©



HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHBEBEE)

21 WEEE(E)
(b) [EARIRAABIFTER R 2FE (B)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (continued)

The Group does not expect the adoption of HKFRS
16 as compared with the current accounting policy
would result in a significant impact on the Group’s
results and it is expected that right of use asset
and lease liabilities of these lease commitments will
be required to be recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group will apply the standard
from its mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019.
The Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets
for property leases will be measured on transition as
if the new rules had always been applied. All other
right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any
prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

REBEE - EIBITEEERL
B RABBMEREERE16
TR TEHAREREELEXN
F& AEHZSFHERAEZE
EFEAEIHERE/ARGES
BERBERTER - AEBEHR
HEAR—Z—NF—H—BRH
R B HEAER - AEEBE
RS E@EE BT &3 & RERR
Al 2 FEBIILLEE T - MEH
EEREEE/RNEERTE
WINE —EEAFARA - AR
thERAREEERSNERBFEEE
BEMNSRFE EEMEMN K
ENBEERSAR) -

MERARERATRREAEER
B A 3R SR o B S 3R] LR
RRXHERERNTENEME
Bl

&

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9

EESTHHEBE(E)

22 RMEBUBREERN TR 2XE

AN B RANT B 1R E R E

IREMTAUANKEMBEHRR T
@

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments on the Group’s financial statements.

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (a) FRANEBYBHEEREIR 2

AT A

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 BB RS ERFFEKE
that relate to the recognition, classification and BEFTERIFIREHRE
measurement of financial assets and financial EXEREENER  pENET

liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from

1 January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in the financial statements. The new accounting
policies are set out in Note 2.9 below.

2 RITEREMTHE 20E
ERERE ST EIE

==

—N\F— A —HERNE

BB mREERFESReRm I A
Eﬁ FTIRCR 2 B I B S iR Ak
REFRIBE AR - TSETBUR
%zﬁlJﬁéTKWaz.g °

(i)  Classification and measurement () PERE=ZE
On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial R=ZZFE—N\NF—HA—HBH
application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s RIERB BB mEERE
management has assessed which business oSk HER) - NREEEIRE
models apply to the financial assets held Bt AREFFFEN SR

BEBERAMEFEN - XK
HEMTASINDEZBENT
BT HRE ERIEIFR AR

by the Group and has classified its financial

2018

instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9
categories.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT



HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEZeiHEHMEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued) 22 EAERAUMBRELENFFE 2HE
(%)
(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (a) FRAWE BB IHREEREIF £
(continued) AT A (&)
(i)  Classification and measurement (continued) (i) DRt E (&)
On the date of initial application, 1 January AERERBHSH -—Z=— \F
2018, the financial instruments of the Group —A—HB XAEEAEMT
were as follows, with any reclassifications BT [EREH D EE A
noted: E8A
Measurement category Carrying amount
HEER BEE
Original New
(HKAS 39) (HKFRS 9) Original - Remeasurement'*? New
RA(EAet A (BAGE
R8I 530%) HEERZ0%) FA Eifita ]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAn Tan TAn
Current financial assets FRBLREE
Other receivables and depostts il Amortised cost Amartised cost
kizé EHHA B 5,863 (40) 5823
Derivative financlal instruments 2RI FUPLO FuPL
BOREABRY  ROREGARE 139,567 - 139,567
Balance due from agents EUREER Amortised cost Amortsed cost
00 0 88,551 (574) 87977
Cash and bank balances and RERBTEAUR Amortised cost Amortised cost
client rust bank balances REETRAER SRR B 1,104,050 (426) 1103624
Current financial liabilities HHSHER
Finance lease obligations BANEAE Amortised cost Amortsed cost
EHAA ERA 4 - 47
Other payables EfbEf3E Amortised cost Amortsed cost
EHHRA 50 4145 - 41452
Derivative financlal instruments 2RI FUPL FuPL
BORETARE  BOnEHABAE 30,646 - 30,646
Clients' balances RF&H Amortised cost Amortised cost
Lin 00 331,731 - 31,731 =
Non-current financial liability e \q<L
Finance lease obligations HERSAE Amortised cost Amortised cost H‘
EHR EiHA 205 L 205 il
(1) FVPL - Financial assets/liabilities measured at (1) EAABEFABZIR E
fair value through profit or loss AREFABERTEZ E
SRAE BE 3
Note:The remeasurement efforts are due to the Kt - EFFEZFZETIBRR \%
change of impairment provision by adoption of RN B 7B B 75 5 22 A éj‘i
HKFRS 9. FORBIONERBEE =
g o é%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEe:HREME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued) 22 EMEBUBRELENFSSE 2HE

(&)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (a) FRANEBYBHEEREIR £

(continued) BITA(E)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) ZEEERE
The Group has three types of financial assets AEEF = BRBERANES
that are subject to HKFRS 9 expected credit B 7% s 5 2E B S5O TR HA(S
loss assessment: EEEFENESRmEE
e Cash and bank balances and client trust o WENIBITHEBUALE

bank balances FErtiR1T4E A

e  Balances due from agents o [EIKMIBAER
e Other receivables and deposits o HhEWHIAREZES
The Group was required to revise its impairment AREBESSZEHREE

model under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of assets. HKFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 with the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) model. A 12-month expected credit
loss allowance of HK$1,040,000 was made on
1 January 2018. There was no material change
in the amount of expected credit loss allowance
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RIEE M & RERIE
SERTEREE - BEY
% ¥ &5 2 Bl S5 95k LATRHA(E
BEER((FAREEERDE
ANEREB & ERIE39
FHMIEEEBEBRIRN - B
R_Z—N\F—H—BEH
1218 A WA E B EIRRE

1,040,000 T - L E =&
—N\E+-—A=+—HIE
ErzEBEEBERESRE
WEEREF -

2018
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E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEe:HREME4£)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued) 22 RMBBUBBMELEREIR 2HE
(&
(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (a) FRANEEBHBEREERFEIF 2
(continued) BT A (E)

statements

(iii) Impact on the consolidated financial

In accordance with the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative
figures have not been restated. The
adjustments were recognised in the opening
consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2018.
The following table shows the adjustments
recognised for each individual line items. Line
items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included, and therefore the line
items disclosed do not add up to the sub-totals

and total below.

(iii) HEEH BRI ZE

RIEE B I5HRE %R 9
58(7.2.15) 2(7.2.26)H) 38 &
& WBmEHLLBRE T -
BEAEREN T N\F—
A—BZEYmAEERRE
RIER o oI RZ(ERIIR
BFTERZAE T EF
HECIHEAESTELENA -
B 2R A P i BR 2 (5138 B
HMETNERTRATRZ N
R saEtERE -

31 December Impact of 1 January
2017 adoption of 2018
Consolidated balance sheet REEESER (BR) As originally HKFRS 9 Restated
(extract) presented (Note 2.2(a)(i))
BRNE B0 5 —EB-N\E
R-E-t%§ ¥R 5 % B 05 —A—H
+-A=+-H A2 RE
REZ5I (B122.2(a)(i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THIL THT
ASSETS EE
Current assets MEBEE
Other receivables, prepayment Hft fE IR
and deposits BEFERES 11,824 (40) 11,784
Balances due from agents BRI & 88,551 (574) 87,977 :%
Cash and bank balances and RERBITEBAR g
client trust bank balances REEERITER 1,104,050 (426) 1,103,624 I
Total assets BEAE 1,400,785 (1,040) 1,399,745 i
=
EQUITY AND LIBILITIES BikEE :\§
Equity 1% T
Retained eamings REEF 161,704 (1,040) 160,664 ﬁ%
Total equity R EE 547,207 (1,040) 546,187 ‘<§‘j
E
it
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEe:HREME(£)

POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries 23 B AT

2.3.1 Consolidation 23145888

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.

ME AR EAREBEEEIEHIEN
EHNER(REABER) - &
SEHERMIEHIEERSEE
BRI & I35 A £ O] S Ay [ i X e
M WHEEHERITHERE AR
EZFOHEENES - B
AIMARE BTN EBEARE
IZEIEEE&IJ AFAERE - X

TN 52 181 5% 25 L P2 I BB B 158 LR 4R
AN -

REBRBRBE LK EBAHA
R - B — KB A REEMNR
BRMEREE  PMELENRIE
NAREBEETHRAEDH R AR
B EENRERRBIARE
ZHFTELENEMBEER A G
NRE -

WHEAERE A AN E £ R ST 8H o

X5 A B AT AR B AT R
BENANMPAAENEERHEA
BE  MIZAEREE B SN
AEFE - AEBIZERWEE
o RSB SIR B 55 P
BB 77 B E S E L I FER R
W USRS JT B (AT SEFE A AR



E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHBEBEE)

23IE DT (&)
231458 KE (&)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries

FrE BB - MR M Ef
SRR MR e 2 R DA R A U
73 B AEAA] 55 R AR P U S B HA B
RAERERE AR B (G P AE AT
HAFEEAA BN EEIIER
BoPREBEMS @ WKER
BERATEBANBARINFEER
AfE - EREE2ERSERTE
RBRER-

ARFENR 5 - KEARIRMNR
SREER MR B IR G T LA o
REHEIBIN T AL - IRIFEF
R ZEREREELTRE -
MBARMESTRRECKER
(M E) - AR B A ER B ER 40
MBS AR — 2R -

232 BV B H#KZ*

B R B 2 B IR A A BB E
ABR - RABRIRE 2 BB
PR o (B AR 2 EEEARRDT]
fR B miRE W R B B ARR -

HE M EARWRZREBHE

is required upon receiving a dividend from these TRPE S HIRIZ B AT 2 2 miK B
investments if the dividend exceeds the total ARRE - SNBSS TRER IR %L
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the B IREERB AR WIS HRERATT T
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying WIRE R EEFE(BIEDE b
amount of the investment in the separate financial ) VEEmE  BIBAYZENE E
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the DA ZHEETHERR ° =
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s %[E
net assets including goodwill. ¥

gji
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEe:HREME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting 2.4 FEHKE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent KESHMETAERETEES
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating ERRAHNABHRESARN B =2
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the BIEARARAAREEYIEE R MG
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses ERKEDHRBOALTHER - K
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. EBEEETNITEE A EIEEE
The Group has determined the executive directors and REFEEEREKA -

senior management as its chief operating decision maker.

2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 JhEEH B

(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) HEERZFIEH
ltems included in the financial statements of each REEZERENMIERKRTEIE
of the Group’s entities are measured using the BN EHERLSENETEL
currency of the primary economic environment in HEIRIE TR EME ([TheeEHE )
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). FT= ©
The consolidated financial statements are presented FERENb - E S N/NCI = SBTI)- 1
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the REBRNEYEEEBTESY
Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances (b) XZRZE
Foreign currency transactions are translated INERZXHIRR 5E BNIER TR
into the functional currency using the exchange STEMNEEBEMNRITERBRE
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or BINEEY EAZERZEER
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign R B E R E LASNESHER
exchange gains and losses resulting from the BEEENRBEMESEMNINER
settlement of such transactions and from the EHRGEEERERER

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
m/T E\j‘ % $|§ % l}ﬁ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each consolidated
statements of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEe:HREME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 Y% BEKRRLE

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the lease
term, whichever is shorter

Computer equipment 31to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 310 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. Assets that are subject to depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are
included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful economic lifes (3 to
5 years) and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful lives of intangible assets
with indefinite lives are reviewed annually to determine
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have indefinite useful lifes are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEe:HREME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

29 SRWMEE
2.9.1 Classification 29.1 7%

2.9 Financial assets

2018

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through profit or loss or through other
comprehensive income), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEe:HREME4£)
POLICIES (continued)

29 EREEE)
293512

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial RO T HERR - AREIZE AR
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial Bl EeREENIEIZAALE

asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are included directly
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and are reported as “leveraged foreign exchange
and other trading income” in the period in which they
arise.

Certain financial assets are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment
if any. The Group’s receivables (including
amounts due from group companies) and “cash
and cash equivalents” fall under this category.
Amounts receivables and amounts due from group
companies are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest
on loans is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and is reported as net
interest income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

29 SREE (&)
2.9.4 Impairment 2.9.4 Bt 1E

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

2.9.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with
the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following categories:
e financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss,

o loans and receivables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
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2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017 (continued)

The classification determined on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its investments at
initial recognition.

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if it holds
the asset primarily for the purpose of trading
and expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables
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except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets.
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2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2017 (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are included directly in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and are reported as
“leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
income” in the period in which they arise. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment
if any. The Group’s receivables (including other
receivables and deposits and balances due from
agents) and “cash and cash equivalents” fall
under this category. The Group's receivables are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Interest on
loans is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and is reported as net
interest income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EE€iHEHE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Offsetting financial instruments 210EHSHMT A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments

The Group classifies derivatives as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at
inception. The Group does not classify any derivatives as
hedges in a hedging relationship.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair values are recognised in the
“leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income”
in the period in which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZE:HBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents 212 REESEEY

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, bank deposits with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and
cash equivalents available for the disposition of the
Group and exclude client trust bank balances, and bank
deposits held to secure the banking facilities granted to
the Group.

2.13 Rental, utility and other deposits

Rental, utility and other deposits held on a long term basis
are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment if any.

2.14 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities representing other payables are
recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs
incurred. Financial liabilities are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the other financial
liabilities using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
— that is, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZSHHREHE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.15 Compound financial instruments 215 8E2@MIA

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company
comprise convertible bonds that can be converted to
share capital at the option of the holder, and the number
of shares to be issued does not vary with changes in their
fair value.

The derivative component of the convertible bonds is
recognised initially at fair value. The liability component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value
of the convertible bonds as a whole and the fair value of
the derivative component.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component
of compound financial instruments is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
derivative is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and any gains or losses derived from its
changes are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

2.16 Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
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(a) BhEFE

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefits scheme

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in New Zealand, are eligible to
participate in KiwiSaver plan on a voluntary basis.
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the fund only if
employees are making contribution to KiwiSaver
plan. The contributions are charged to the profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary, which
operates in Australia, are required to participate
in employee superannuation fund. This subsidiary
is required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the fund. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the fund.

The assets of the Scheme and other plans as
described above are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the Scheme
and other plans.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Employee level entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they are accrued to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, in which the bonus scheme is at the
discretion of the Group’s directors based on the
Group performance that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.18 Share-based payment transactions

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined with reference to the fair value
estimated by external valuer under a valuation model
commonly used in the market.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZE:HBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Share-based payment transactions (continued) 218 URBZARS (&)
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (a) BmiZEROGZTHXE (E)

(continued)
In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account R ERAEER S - FREEZN
is taken of any performance conditions, other than N AR E R < B ([T 55
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the 1) (aRsE A ) oh - W E B
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable. RIFIEHE o
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, WEmAEEZ G KA - E R
together with a corresponding increase in equity, TRFEIE INE0 S - FERRIS IR 1ES
over the year in which the service conditions are EBrrzE®E (RE@AEESEAE
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant HESETFZRA(FBRE]) &
employees become fully entitled to the award (the R)ANER -EHEBHER - &
“vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised BEE BRI EREER S 2
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet ZERAY  RMEEBEFED RIS
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which o RAEBHERZKRBSEFERB 2
the vesting year has expired and the Group’s best R T AESE 2 &EMH - KFE
estimate of the number of equity instruments that EEBEANRSGELR - TRk
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the profit BEERATRNFVEFRER
or loss for a year represents the movement in the B o

cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that year.

When the options are exercised, the Company RATI RIS TR BT
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of & o B W15 I8 (FOBRE A
any directly transaction costs are credited to share BEERXRSMA) » That ABRA o

capital.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are MR N 45 & 82 B 2 (RIS -

modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised BIZEfER—TERL I - LA
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, BRI W SRS ER o thoh - S AT
an expense is recognised for any modification, IHE R H - (EAR (D SZ T AY
which increases the total fair value of the share- ZHHE AR EGI - BT R
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise BRI - MIEET B HIPTET
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date =& o

of modification.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Share-based payment transaction among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting periods an
increase to investment in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.

2

EESTHHEREE (&)

218 R AR S ()
(a) BERZEROGZNXE (E)

e 5 he o 4 T ER B A E B - FE AN
RSEREHBRRE - 75
KRRz AR - BB AR
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FEiH 2 22E) - W B HEE
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FTEEE)  RERWA SR ER S
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% o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZE:HBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Share capital 219 A

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a liability
in the consolidated financial statements in the period
in which it is approved by the shareholders or directors
where appropriate.

2.20 Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit of loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

TR AR EREBNE
77 3 S B R SC A 0 BT 488 A AN I FHBR AR
HRERE DT I REIBRERD °

ERRA SN ERRNESE (WEM)
HERRNGEEMBRERNERRE

f& e

2.20 Fr 8%

FABRIA HBFERNE FIRETIA ©
MR R R - R EAE b2 mE
Wt R E R A s MR AV IH B 48
BRBERERSN « EZIBRT - BRIATR
DREE M EE W S sk B R e

7
7 e

(a) BIEIFriE#

B EA RS 35 3 th AR I AN 52 (S Y /BB
RA)VEERELERHWARE
KRN EE BB EE B
MEEGIETHE - EEEBERABK
AP 1 P AR BR BV 15 0 E HARY
MR RAMR - XEBERIBFR
TR R TR A R B %5 R S AN Y
Tt R AR E A o



E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEE2iHFEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Income tax (continued) 2.20 FT 8%t (&)

(b) EZFTSH

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

BEFRBHIRARESL  SLEBE
FEBOFHEEREENRAE
REEEMBHRRNEREIEE
AREREZE T AR -
BEEMSREREGE BRIE R
s EE R - WHEARAIRE
FTSMEESRFRIEFFHA
BEEERBHRSSERAON R
(ROEB)) METE °

BEIEFTS IR E EER AT REA R 2K
JE ER T a8 M) AT P 4 #E 80 E Br 1E
EZREER -

IRIEFT IS TR M B R RV &
FRELMERIEZRIELBE -
HE AR AL BT 1S58 B 1 138 [0 G B 1
ZEMERIBAKEZS - M
AJ 5L SR AN K AT BE 3 (o] T A 1 =
BEAIER N o

EHBRE AT BN AT IR
BEHENBARARGERE - BiE
EFTSMEER BB RER—
MISHR R E R E R A Z A
TR RR ARG E SR TR AR

authority on either the taxable entity or different EEMULFAER - B0 & ERT i
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle SHREEHaEGHEEKHE- }<
the balances on a net basis. m
I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
A 3 0 5 e Mt R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements have been prepared so that
expenses/costs are stated inclusive of GST, where
appropriate. The Group is not a registered person in term
of the Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 in New Zealand.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) fees and commission income, when the services
have been rendered;

(i) management fees income, when the services have
been rendered; and

(iii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

2.23 Cash dealing income

Unleveraged cash dealing services are provided to
corporate clients, in particular, those clients engaged in
money changing business for the purpose of hedging
their cash positions and meeting settlement obligations.
The Group is rewarded by the spread between the price
quoted to our clients and the price offered by our market
makers. Cash dealing income is recognised when cash
dealing transactions have been completed by market
makers with reference to prevailing exchange rate.

2

EESTHHEREE (&)

221 MR RS ([RBm &R

SRR B RBLAE R B ARTIBR
R AR m AR (ER) -3t
MR — NN\ RFE R RRETEN
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2.228 AFERR
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E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZE2:HEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Leases 22475

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in finance lease obligation. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in non-current
liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group

HAAARE AN EZR RN EH
NWHERBEAKEEHE - RIBEEHE
B RIE (MR A LG THE
AESR) REKEEXNHEHEHRHER
RIBEHRR -

RNEBHAE T - BE MR E -
REBEELT 2B AENER K&
EIRNYIZE - BB LR ENEERR
REBERE - REHENHERAE
REEMFERN AR ERSKERENK
REMENBREERTERS -

HENESEEEHRRERER -
FFABEREAYE - BIABENRE
BEARERXEO# - HENES
BEBENGRRER LT AIERDE
& - BERANK S MOIREERE
B ks - WE SRR TRES
MELEFEBEHPRMELLR - RIZFE
HEBANYE  BELRBREE
WEMRFHEEHRENREEN
=,

FrEEN T EE R N E R EEEE
REE (ERABEAN) WEERBERK

as lessee are classified as operating leases (Note 31). SHE (M:E31) - BRIEEKSHEEX :‘f
Payments made under operating leases (net of any NEIFRIE (FkR B A4S TR ERIME ¥
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit B RESEERHEEHRANRE 18
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. = ABR o 1
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and sound
risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and successful
financial practice. The Group acknowledges that a balance
must be achieved between risks, control and business growth.
The principal financial risks inherent in the Group’s business
are credit risk, market risk (including interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk) and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management objective is to enhance shareholder value while
retaining exposure within acceptable thresholds in response to
changes in markets. The Group has a robust risk management
system in place to identify, analyse, assess and manage risks.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by the Group
Risk Department under policies approved by the Group audit,
risk and compliance committee. The Group Risk Department
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well
as written policies covering specific areas, such as mitigating
credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, capital management risk
and risk limits setting and monitoring.

The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised
below:

B 75 L B

TRRBEASFERR - AT ZE
WREREESIE - THEFEMATI A
o REBERMERR - EFIREBERLZ
FAZYTE AEENEBEFENTE
TREARSEERR  mEER (B
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
bank balances, balances due from agents, derivative
financial instruments and other receivables and deposits.
After evaluating the clients’ risk profiles, the Group sets
stop-out levels to the clients. Once their equity drops
to the stop-out level the Group’s trading system will
automatically liquidate the client’s positions. Without
taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk
is the carrying amounts of these assets. The Group
monitors the credit risk exposure of the balances on a
regular basis, taking into account the financial position
and past experience. The Group did not experience any
losses from non-performance by the counterparties. The
balances due from agents have no defaults in the past.

The Group’s bank deposits are held with banks and
balances due from agents are held with major financial
institutions and Tianjin Precious Metals Exchange
Limited (“TPME”). Management reviews the banks and
financial institutions’ creditworthiness on a regular basis.
The banks and financial institutions are of high credit
quality and substantially with a rating of grade A or
with long established relationships. The Group is also
subject to credit risk relating to balance due from TMPE,
a recognised investment exchange under the Tianjin
Municipal People’'s Government and a related party
of the Group. The credit risk relating to the balance is
treated as any other receivables in the normal course of
business. The Group assessed its credit risk exposure as
insignificant as at 31 December 2018.

E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRARER (&)
31 SERK (&)

(a) ZHEERE

3.1 Credit risk (continued)

(a) Impairment of financial assets

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to HKFRS 9 expected credit loss
assessment:

o Cash and bank balances and client trust bank
balances;

e Balances due from agents; and

e QOther receivables and deposits.

The Group measures loss allowances for these
financial assets at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses, which is an estimate of
losses that the Group expects will result from a credit
event, such as a payment default.

To measure the expected credit losses, the Group
determines the expected loss rates based on the
credit default rates of the debtors of these financial
assets with reference to the corresponding credit
ratings from internationally renowned credit rating
agencies. These rates are further adjusted to reflect
the possible changes in the current and forwarding
looking macroeconomic factors which may result
in different default behavior and credit risks of the
debtors. At each reporting date, the credit default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

As at 31 December 2018, the 12-month ECL
calculated by the Group is not material and there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBEREBER (&)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 31 FERK(E)
(a) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (a) THEZERE (&)
The movement in the provision for expected credit FRRE RIBITERUARE~E
loss account in respect of Cash and bank balances LIRITERR  EWRIEGEsS A
and client trust bank balances, balances due from MEW R TE R iRe 2 TAEA=EE
agents and other receivables and deposits during BERBEHEZEHHIT -

the year is as follows:

Cash and
bank balances
and client Balances Other
trust bank due from receivables
balances agents  and deposits Total
RERAMT
EHUREF EURE HitEWRE
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) SAEEEER (FR) fERERITE R £a ks @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TRL TR TR

Balance at 1 January 2017 and RER B ERE305
31 January 2017 under HKAS 39 RZZ—t$-A-Ak
—Z—tF-A=+-REH - - - =
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 9 #IIARME B 1R 8
(Note 2.2(a)(i)) F9% 2 %2 (H3r2.2(a)(i)) 426 574 40 1,040
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-A—-RH&#H 426 574 40 1,040
Impairment losses recognised ERERAAEEE
during the year = - > =
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZ-N\FE+-F=+-B&#H 426 574 40 1,040
g
i
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(c)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral
held or other credit enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event the counterparties fail to perform their
obligations as at the balance sheet date, in relation
to each class of financial assets, is the amounts of
those assets before provision for expected credit
loss as indicated in the consolidated balance sheet.
These amounts represent the worst case scenario
of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 December
2018 and 2017, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

The amounts of receivables and other assets arising
from the course of business of the Group are as
follows:

3 HMBERER(E)
3.1 FERRE

(b) FFEL A KB M IS EIZHFTHT
REEFERREE
WEFHAREREEREITER
T AIARRERFERESES R
BEMBNRSEERBRERR
REERBERANMTIZEEER
TRHMEEEEREINEE - %
FLHAREENR T N\FR
—E—+F+_A=+—HFA
REERBROKEET - AR
T B AR AR P 45 #5490 m =X P B LA
EERER -

MARBEEGBIEPELN R
REREMEESRRNOD

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET F&T

Other receivables and deposits Hib el xmm Rig4e 6,901 5,863

Derivative financial instruments PTEEMIT A 67,400 139,567

Balances due from agents JE U 1K B 45 o 22,325 88,551
Cash and bank balances and & RIRTTAERIA R

client trust bank balances B EERITES 981,192 1,104,050

Total gross amounts BEBE S 1,077,818 1,338,031

None of the financial assets is either past due or
impaired.

(c) BiESBEEBBPIRE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MKEBRERE(F)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 3.1 8RR (&)

(d) The following table breaks down the Group’s major (d TRUSEHSAEBENEEE
credit exposure at their amounts, as categorised BERER TIREE T —N\FX
by geographical region as of 31 December 2018 —E—tF+A=1+—HMH
and 2017. The Group has allocated exposures BRI SE - AREEREBEESEF
to regions based on the country of domicile of its HHFTE R R o i B S 2 & i
counterparties. Credit risk exposure by geographical & o IREIEE DB EE RS KT
sectors is classified according to the location of N EE R R IR F S M T
counterparties after taking into account the transfer LA 48 -
of risk.

As at 31 December 2018 R=-Z2-N\E+=-HA=+—H
Asia Pacific Europe
excluding and other
Hong Kong  Hong Kong regions Total
TAHE B R
8 (TERESH) HithE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR

Other receivables and deposits Hip e ki e 4,660 2,241 - 6,901
Derivative financial instruments fTESRBTA 16 67,384 - 67,400
Balances due from agents R B 45 84 - 22,325 - 22,325
Cash and bank balances and Re RBTEHAR

client trust bank balances REEIRTES 418,442 468,984 93,766 981,192
Total st 423,118 560,934 93,766 1,077,818
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERKRER (&)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 3.1 FERK(E)
(d) (continued) (d) (&)
As at 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—t+F+_H=+—H
Asia Pacific

excluding  Europe and
Hong Kong Hong Kong  other regions Total

DRME BUM &
B (TREEE) Hii R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TEL TAT

Other receivables and deposits EtEWFIA NS 4,019 1,844 = 5,863
Derivative financial instruments TEERMTA 21 139,546 = 139,567
Balances due from agents KRB - 88,551 - 88,551
Cash and bank balances and Be RRTHEBIAR

client trust bank balances RPEERITER 185,392 740,047 178,611 1,104,050
Total @t 189,432 969,988 178,611 1,338,031

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Market risk

3.2.1 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the

Group invests all surplus funds in accounts with

reputable counterparties and is susceptible to

movements in call interest rates. Interest rate risk

arises from unexpected changes in interest rates

that may result in an adverse impact on the Group’s

current and near future performance. The Group has

not used any interest rate swaps nor forward interest

rate contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate

risk.

As at 31 December 2018

MRERER (&)
3.2 miEEE
3.2.1 F|F B2

HRARERABERBESRE
REBEREFHFHINRPARE
MEZAERBTZE  WAE
EEHEMERR - FERERIRA
MERHBINKE) » REEHE A
KBRS RAT R IBEL T
FE o AL E I RF BAEMF R
1= BRSUR BN R & 40 3 B R &
2B

R=-E—NF+=-A=+—H

Floating Fixed Non-  Provision for
interest interest interest expected
rate rate bearing credit loss Total
BHEE
FEF= B E = %E BREE st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Assets BE
Other receivables and deposits  E it BB Rk & - - 6,901 (40) 6,861
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 & @ T A - - 67,400 - 67,400
Balances due from agents eI i o4 2,300 - 20,025 (574) 21,751
Cash and bank balances and & RIRITEH I K
client trust bank balances RFERRITAER 810,573 169,045 1,574 (426) 980,766
Liabilities &f
Finance lease obligations MERSAE - 188 - - 188
Other payables Hith TR - 5,835 14,350 - 20,185
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T & - - 5,374 - 5,374
Clients’ balances BEEH - - 331,731 - 331,731
Convertible bonds RRES - 191,065 - - 191,065
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBERER (&F)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 TiEAER (&)
3.2.1 Interest rate risk (continued) 321 FIEE Bz (&)
As at 31 December 2017 RN—_E—+tF+_-_H=+—H

Floating Fixed Non-

interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FEF & (&l ¢ il = %8 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TAT

Assets EE
Other receivables and deposits Hin A kRS = = 5,863 5,863
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMTA = = 139,567 139,567
Balances due from agents MR 3,331 - 85,220 88,551
Cash and bank balances and Be RBTHEBIAR

client trust bank balances BPERRTER 1,021,105 80,883 2,062 1,104,050
Liabilities &ff
Finance lease obligations BMEMSRE = 252 = 252
Other payables H A 58 = = 41,452 41,452
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMTA - - 30,646 30,646
Clients’ balances by - - 766,182 766,182
Based on the simulations performed and with other EIERRRIEmMEM A S EER
variables held constant, should the interest rate HAEEE - (HFRIES N
increase/decrease by 1%, the profit after taxation for 1% BlEZE—_FT—N\FE+_H
the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/ =t+—HIEFEOKRTE SR &
decrease by approximately HK$8,129,000 (2017: 140 R A 498,129,0005% 7T (—
HK$10,244,000) and the equity would increase/ T —+£F : 10,244,00058 7T) &
decrease by approximately HK$8,129,000 (2017: HEZS A AN Rk 24 498,129,000
HK$10,244,000). BT (ZF—+ % : 10,244,000

HIT) e

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRARER (&)
3.2 miEE (&)

322 JpEE 7 Bz

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.2 Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate fluctuation is the most significant risk
in leveraged foreign exchange trading. The Group
takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on
its financial position and cash flows. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to New Zealand dollars and Australian dollars.
The Group will suffer a loss if it fails to cover a
client deal at a better exchange rate. The Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure by reviewing
the open position of the Group and client trading
performance. The risk is measured by the use
of sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.
Specific risk limits are set to measure and monitor
foreign exchange risk. Any excessive foreign
exchange risks are passed on to other financial
institutions through execution of trades with those
institutions. The management sets limits on the
level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for
both overnight and intra-day positions, which are
monitored on an intra-day basis.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency policy to hedge its
currency exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations.

M RZ B HIER A IMER H &
BARMER - NEB OB
MAESREANREREXREEHN
FEMATERR - AEBEFAZIA
AL PE B T BOROT 8 E Y B R SME
Rz o fid AN 5= B R BE 4% BB £ BE =
EITEPRS @ AIRRZEX -
REBFERBEEAEBHRTR
BHREFPRSRIAEEINER
B - R Y@ E A A SRR DT
MR RERAEFET EEITE
E - RHERBRRFIDRTERE
2SN JEL g2 1 AR (R AR R SME
R 335 28 B HL A < R AR ETT
RBHREZEHE - BEEYH
[BERMANBRR G KA
ERRBRIKFRERRE - RNEH
Ry FA] A T IABESR -

AREFHHETBINEBRE
H &AM ERINE H R ERR -
ANEL B B Al I I E SMNERR
AR AR B BIN K EEF
EEEMNINERR

The Group trades in foreign currencies, commodities NEEFBRAERBES X HHEKE }%
and other products through its margin trading 1TNE R REMERRZS o }<
business. In order to protect against their exposures BIRENEE NS ER N ERE ‘H‘
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and WEBZ BB E  AEBRIE -
commodity prices, the Group has entered into a HEGEESEE A RIRITEI N §
number of foreign exchange forward transactions ZIAINERBAR G R EZEEL ° T
and contracts for difference with the Group’s t‘l@[}é
bankers in the normal course of business. EE

i

I %
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRARER (&)

3.2 miZERE (&)

322 S EERE B ()
TREAAREBR —ZF— N\F K&
—E—+E+-A=+—HEE
BIINE RS o RERAAABITE
RERAES BRI IZ R B S
BENAIE-

3.2 Market risk (continued)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at 31
December 2018 and 2017. Included in the tables are
the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in HK$
equivalent, categorised by the original currency.

As at 31 December 2018 R=-=2—N\E+=-H=+—H

Provision
for
expected
credit
HK$ NZD AUD USD  JPY RMB Others  loss  Total
BHGE
Bn #E®LT  Bn % RE AR%®  Htt BEEE 43
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
Térz Thn Tirn THEr TEx TEr THEx TEx  TEn
Assets £E
Other receivables and deposits EERFEREZE 39T 436 - 939 - 1585 - (40) 6,861
Derivative financial instruments 74 £ & T & - 1314 8841 51,185 - - - - 67,400
Balances due fromagents ~ EMAELH 212 646 201 18950 1,206 501 510 (574 21,751
Cash and bank balances and B & RFTEERI R
client trust bank balances REEARTESR 20781 24398 34680 875825 4,288 9720 1500  (426) 980,766
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligations REREHE - - 188 - - - - - 188
Other payables AR 10,748 728 331 7864 1 513 - - 20,185
Derivative financial instruments #7142 & I A - 1,100 121 4147 - - - - 5374
Clients' balances EP& - 23312 27549 218927 1,943 - - - 331,731
Convertible bonds mkES 191,065 - - - - - - - 191,065
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MEEBRER (A
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 TiERER (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 JMER B ()
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tFTHA=+—H

H  NZD  AUD  USD  JPY  RMB  Others  Tot
An @B®n  BRr Xt AR ARE  Efp £
HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$000
TR TEL TET TER TEL TR TEL  TEn

Assets EE
Other receivables and deposits £ EMFER &% 3710 130 262 308 - 1453 - 5863
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A - 6976 9009 123578 4 = - 139,567
Balances due from agents JEM A B £ 198 2016 213 80,184 789 4610 541 885951
Cashand bank balancesand & RFTESRN R

client trust bank balances EPREERTES 5165 19416 32427 1007690 7225 10604 1523 1,104,050
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligations BAMEAE - - 252 - - - - 252
Other payables AR 7,386 9%5 1,148 31,134 2 817 YY)
Derivative financial instruments  $74 £ & T & - 1874 0 28742 - - - 30646
Clients’ balances ey - 21087 30864 710954 3527 - - 766,182

A8

I 5
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRARER (&)

3.2 miZERE (&)
322 S EERE B ()

The following table indicates the impact of TRINERENSIETEES —
management’s reasonable expectation on the TE-—NEFER_ZE—tF+=A8
movement in foreign exchange rate on the Group’s =+ —BARKERBIE RN &
profit after taxation and on equity as at 31 December T Y 47N BEE R 087 N Y S 2
2018 and 2017:

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)

)
I3

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT

Movement Movement

in foreign in foreign
currency 2018 currency 2017
Foreign currency risk SN L B HNERE —E-NE SNERE) —T—+&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FERT
AUD R +/-1% +/-1,087 +/-6% +/-589
JPY HIE +/-4% +/-142 +/-5% +/-224
NzD M +/-1% +/-540 +/-6% +/-233
RMB AR +/-5% +/-568 +/-4% +/-634

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Group’s operations are subject to various statutory
liquidity requirements as prescribed by the relevant
authorities. The Group has put in place a monitoring
system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital
to fund its business commitments and to comply with the
regulatory requirements. The liquidity risk of the Group is
managed by regularly monitoring current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and current working capital to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group holds sufficient cash and deposits on demand to
repay its liabilities.

3.3 M B

REBHNEB X BRARBRENSE
EERDERERLMR - ARECDZ
MEERG  BRESTMNREE
ERAEBNERARRHES &
BSPAMBEN - NEEF B TE ST
BRIRTAHIRBE S ZREEER
MR - ERAREERRHNIR S
FREEkBEEESAmEREIN
EHRBESER - AEBEFERE
MRS EREREERRE -



) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 119
m/T E\j‘ % ﬁ% l}ﬁ

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBERER (&F)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 mEIMREE (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 &4 EF HE 7 8K BB
maturities BELhE
The table below presents the cash flows payable TREBIAREER-—ZFT—N\FX
by the Group under financial liabilities by remaining —T—+F+—H8 :—1—— Hizgk
contractual maturities as at 31 December 2018 and TAAZHENSR A EE N
2017. The amounts disclosed in the table are the ERIESRE - ZRXTHENS
contractual undiscounted cash flows assuming no HAAHREIRIBERE @ BR
conversion of the convertible bonds up to maturity. HEDH B W ER R ESEE
}7&% o
As at 31 December 2018 R-E—-N\F+=-H=+—H
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
imonth  months  months years  5years Total
-z =z

-fBAm  =@A +-fA -ZIf @IF st
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn TR Tz TER TER  TER

Liabilities 8%
Finance lease obligations REMEAE 4 9 38 155 - 206
Other payables EfufE5E 14,182 5,842 161 - - 20,185
Clients' balances RP&H 331,731 - - - - 331,731
Debt portion of the convertible bonds MHEREFERHD - 7,561 7430 207,561 - 222561
345917 13412 7638 207,716 - 574,683
Derivative financial instruments fTESRmIA 5,374 - - - - 5,374
351,201 13412 7638 207,716 - 580,057 N
¥
i
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBEREBER (&)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 mEIMREE (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 &4 EF HE S 8K BB
maturities (continued) BEmE (&)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=—A=+—=H
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1 month months months years 5years Total
-

—fHAR =R @R -ZE1% NS @it
HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TAT TAT TATL TER TER

Liabilities a8

Finance lease obligations BEMEAE 5 9 42 228 - 284

Other payables Hit {508 39,322 6 2,124 - - 41,452

Clients’ balances RP&EH 766,182 - = = = 766,182
805,509 15 2,166 228 - 807,918

Derivative financial instruments  $T£& @ T & 30,646 - = = - 30,646
836,155 15 2,166 228 - 838,564

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRAKRERE(E)

34 TREERBENQIARME

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

341 BARBEFENLHMT A

The following table represents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted price in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is

not based on observable market data.

As at 31 December 2018

TREIREE B IRFBHER
SEAF7TRIEBRTH - BHE

FISRER R AR EFRBIE R =1
FRFTUNRAEFENSRTA
WEREE SRS IANAR
BEREESFHRENEZAAE
AFTEREBENERETRE -
EHESRERDOT :

FIR(XSHEFER) - NAEER
MEFRFRE CREFARE)AER
ffE -

Fff : AR EFEZRIERT
SRUSRITENRE - KA
HERMNEE - E2HEENS
FEERKBEZE RN AIBRRET
B8R -

FIR (HEFR) : 2AEER
BERMNTE - EAIEEN2H
BRI A AR T 5 B

R=FB-NF+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F18 28 FE3R #t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT THER TER THER "
#
¥
Assets BE 0
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£ & @ T & - 67,400 - 67,400 i
=
4
Liabilities =L %
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T44£ & T A - 5,374 - 5,374 =
Embedded derivative portion of ~ AJ#fE{E% Z FRA R %
the convertible bonds {THE T AR - - 13,500 13,500 N
E
it
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRAKRERE(E)
34 cHMEBEEREEBENARE (&)

341 BAARBHENEH T A (&)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(continued)

As at 31 December 2017

R_F—tHF+_-_HA=+—8H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERE Fom F3M% Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THT THT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£ @ T A = 139,567 = 139,567
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£ 8T & = 30,646 = 30,646

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

Embedded derivative portion of the convertible
bonds is classified within Level 3 as it is mainly
driven by the valuation of the convertible bonds
using binomial model adjusted with liquidity, credit
and market risk factors as the Group may deem
necessary.

WIHRERTEEE 2SR T
B -HARERABERNE
E ° s FEERIMFE D £ M Al &
SRR ERMBEE - WHA B
TMRER B EMFT - WIRAR
EFfE-—HTAMFTNRMESE
SN ERERS - BIZIATA
BRI AFE2M

EHINER O AR ERRED
REVEHIEREE - FTELMNE
BRI @EE -

AT 4R 4 B A ST T BB 5
SEAEM  HEBEAIR
Y AR %
- EEARETERATER
RBES  EERTSAREE
R
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MKERERGE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 SRIBEEREBENAAE(E)
3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value 341 BAREFNENETHMT A (F)
(continued)
The following table summarises the quantitative TEBAR=_ZE—NF+=A
inputs and assumptions used for valuing convertible = +t—BAREBEREKFTFEIRL
bonds which is categorised in Level 3 of the fair AR ESHEMEANELE
value hierarchy as of 31 December 2018: ABEMBE :
Fair value at
31 December ~ Valuation Significant  Relationship of significant
Description 2018  technique inputs inputs to fair value
g R-ZB-N\E
+=R=+-H
MARE HESN EXABGAE EABAEHEAAEBEZENER
HK$'000
THT
Embedded derivative portion of 13,500  Binomial model  Volatility A change in volatility by 5% would
the convertible bonds increase/(decrease) the fair value
by approximately HK$288,000/
(HK$86,000)
AAREFRAXTELASH ZEAER K18 RIEZE5% AR ERKEM/ (R
#1288,000/ 7T/ (86,0007 7T)

Share price A change in share price by 5%
would increase/(decrease) the fair
value by approximately HK$82,000/
(HK$63,000)

RE REZE5% AR E/EM/ (FD)
#782,0007% ¢,/ (63,0007 7T)

Discount rate A change in discount rate by 5% would o
(decrease)/increase the fair value ;LL
by approximately HK$(199,000)/ T
HK$208,000 b

BRI = BRI REE5% - RAEE CR) /1 I
%7 (199,000) 77T,/ 208,003 7T S

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERKREE(Z)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 sRMEERBBENAAE(E)
3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value 341 BAREFEHNLTHET A (&)
(continued)
The following table presents the movement in Level 3 TRENEHE_Z—N\F+=A
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2018: =+—HIEFEANFIHFRITAZ

Embedded
derivative portion of
the convertible bonds

AR E S IR AR
$THE T A5
HK$'000
FAT

Opening balance FHEEE -
Upon issuance of convertible bonds BITR IR E S 42,040
Deferred losses upon issuance BIT1R 2 REEIE (4,480)
Change in fair value included in the FFAZEKREEZZAREEZY

statement of comprehensive income (26,042)
Amortisation of deferred losses on SR B0 {0 IR A S R 8

conversion component 1,982
Ending balance FREEER 13,500
Change in fair value for level 3 instruments R—_Z— N\&E+_A=+—H

£ held at 31 December 2018 FiisEE3RT Az AR E
g ) (26,042)

There have been no significant transfers between RNEE—_ZE—N\FE_ZFE—+
level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended 31 F+-_/B=+—HILFEE - F1
December 2018 and 2017. B F2M N B4 I oA

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT
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3 HKRAKRERE(E)
34 sREBEEREBENAARE(E)
342 WHBEAARBETENLHMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.2 Financial assets and liabilities not measured at

fair value

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are not materially different
from their carrying amounts due to their short
maturities.

Balances due from agents and other receivables
include the contractual amounts for settlement of
trades and other obligations due to the Group.

Clients’ balances represent the margin deposits
received from clients and the unrealised profit or
loss from their trading activities under normal course
of business. Their carrying values are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

REE

RoB—N\ER-F—t&F+=
A=+—8 = dARREL IR
AREHENEREENBEN
ARG - MEAAEEARK
EELREAER -

JE LA IR 5 R S EL R MR TR B
RENASEBRARGENRZNE
HFRIA R B EAL -

B EERIEIN IE R E15BEH
REPHRBES TR R MEFET
BEEBH RIS N N E1E -
FEEEEQAALEMEE -

&

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBERER(E)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 sRMEERBBENAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 343 HIHETHEERTHER

(a) ZREE

(a) Financial assets

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

The following financial assets are subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

As at 31 December 2018

AT EREEREE - A58
FIITHR —F G E LR

AP AR -

R-B-—-NE+=-A=+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
PRAREEEER
BHENERZE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
Gross financial  of financial
amounts of liabilities assets
recognised setoffin presented in Cash
financial  the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet instruments received amount
REE
BERAES SEEERRK
BRISR CRIALH  KEIM BER
EEGE  SfAE SREETE  SRIA HeHAR B8
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THR THR THR THR
Derivative financial fTESHTH
instruments 108,121 (40,721) 67,400 - - 67,400
Total @t 108,121 (40,721) 67,400 - - 67,400




3

) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERKREE(Z)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 SRIBEEREBENAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 343 YT HMEERTHERE (B)
(continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued) (a) =HEE (#&)
As at 31 December 2017 R-_E—+tFE+=_F=+—H
Related amounts not set off
in the balance sheet
TRREEBER
BRRAETA
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
Gross financial financial
amounts of liabilities assets
recognised setoffin  presented in Cash
financial  the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet instruments received amount
BERNEE EERERA
BERReR CREISH Fr 2518 B
REBE BERE SREETH ¢RI ReEAR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL THT
Derivative financial fTESRTA
instruments 217,652 (78,085) 139,567 - - 139,567
Total it 217,652 (78,085) 139,567 - - 139,567
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRAKRERE(E)
34 cHMEBEEREEBENARE (&)

343 HIHLHMEER THEE ()

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

(b) THEE
UTERABESEN - AR
HITH—FEEE L AN
AR

(b) Financial liabilities

The following financial liabilities are subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZB-—NE+=-H=+—H

Related amounts not set off

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

in the balance sheet
YRREEEER
BHENERZE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
Gross financial  of financial
amounts of assets liabilities
recognised setoffin presented in Cash
financial ~ the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
REE
BERRES EEEERRK
BERERM CRALR  FEHN 2ER
BEAE  SE4E CREMFE SRIA ReHAm FE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THR TAR ThR TAR TAR TAR
Derivative financial fTEemIA
instruments (46,095) 40,721 (5,374) - - (5,374)
Total e (46,005) 40,721 (5,374) - - (5,374)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MKERERGE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 SRIBEEREBENAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 43 Y CHEERSHMEE (&)
(continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (continued) (b) =HEE (&)
The following financial liabilities are subject NTE&mEEZHEE - aas
to offsetting, enforceable master netting HITHR— FRAEE T A
arrangements and similar agreements. hEERR o
As at 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=_A=1+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
TAREERRR
BHNARR
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
Gross financial  of financial
amounts of assets liabilities
recognised setoffin  presented in Cash
financial  the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
AERAEHE SERERA
BRRER CEAER  MEIH BER
BEEE  BELE SRAGFE  SRIA Heffa e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TAT TR TR

Derivative financial fiEemIA
instruments (108,731) 78,085 (30,646) - _ (30,646)

Total @t (108,731) 78,085 (30,646) = = (30,646) N

&
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEERERERE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 SRIBEEREBENAAE(E)

B43HIHLHMEER THMEE ()

3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued) (b) £FE & (&)

2018

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT

For the financial assets and liabilities subject
to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar arrangements above, each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows
for net settlement of the relevant financial assets
and liabilities when both elect to settle on a
net basis. In the absence of such an election,
financial assets and liabilities will be settled
on a gross basis, however, each party to the
master netting agreement or similar agreement
will have the option to settle all such amounts
on a net basis in the event of default of the
other party. Per the terms of each agreement,
an event of default includes failure by a party
to make payment when due; failure by a party
to perform any obligation required by the
agreement (other than payment) if such failure
is not remedied within 30 days after notice of
such failure is given to the party; or bankruptcy.

B _Eat 2RISR BT — 0%
MAE LRSI L FERR
NERMEERABMS @ &
SEEIZGHFRITNZTE
W R B RF AR
BEE > BRIPFRAEENRE
MBEERAE - ERBIF
HZEBNBERT A&
ERBERSREREER
B E-BH— FRinENK
BB ZEAER —HEL
ER— T B R FIRFEE
EEEEMBERBESRE - 1R
BRBEWMZEOIGRK - BHF
B R — T REE A B HAFK
I8 AR — T RBEETT Wi
Fr M E B B AE (R RER SN -
BRAETR D W EZ 4B A
E1R30KHAR MARBESE 18
RiEHE 0 HAKE -
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HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5

3.6

Financial instruments by category

All the financial assets and financial liabilities (including
cash and bank balances, client trust bank balances,
balance due from agents, other receivables and deposits,
clients’ balances, debt portion of the convertible bonds,
other payables and finance lease obligations) in the
consolidated balance sheet are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method except for the
derivative financial instruments and the derivative portion
of the convertible bonds which are carried at fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which
is a broader concept than the “equity” on the face of
balance sheet, are:

e To comply with the liquid capital requirements
under the Securities and Futures Commission in
Hong Kong, Australian Securities and Investments
Commission in Australia and the Securities
Commission in New Zealand for its subsidiaries
which are licensed corporations;

e To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

e To support the Group's stability and growth; and

e To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

3 MBEREREE)

3.5

3.6

REREINEMITA

HAEERBERANEZHEREEN
TRBE(ERRSRRTESR T
FErEiRITHE SR - BRUIRARIRGERR - H
fhRIGRIAE N IZ® ~ B MARR - Al
P& 2 B AR - BB FRIA S
BB TH B AR ) 1% H SH A AN A B R A
TEANFR - AR AR BEARNITES
BT AR AR E S 2 HTE T AR D
BRON o

BEXEE

AREEER (MOREEABRN[#
m|BRER)BEMNAR - BN :

s FBFREEEMNMEBARME -
RNEBEARLFLRMESEHERSR
B JEMNRNESEREE
BEEeRMANESFZEEN
MEBEERTE

s REAEENFHELERN N
RIBRICR R E M AR E R
A EIE ST E

s XHFRAKRENRBEMER &

s MNRBEBEIMEARNER UXFHH
EBERE-

&
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HM¥ERERE)
3.6 Capital management (continued) 3.6 EXEE (&)
The Group’s gearing ratio at the balance sheet date is AREBREEHHWABELRMOT ¢

shown below:

2018 2017

—=E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEX TFHET

Total debt (R GE] 191,253 252

Total equity B E 571,706 547,227

Gearing ratio BELL = 33.5% 0.05%

Total debt includes finance lease obligations and B AEZE B R AT EAE R A AR

convertible bonds. & o

All licensed corporations within the Group complied with NEBEE T \FER_ZT—+F|LF

their required liquid capital during the years ended 2018 E - AEEMFAAGFREE D EBSTE
and 2017. MEBESHE ©

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 SEZ&t{istR e

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and et R A& BT - WABELR N
are based on historical experience and other factors, HithEAEZAER  SIEEREIEF L NEE
including expectations of future events that are believed to be HWARKEBHEHNSIETELE -

reasonable under the circumstances.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
fair value of share options and derivative portion of the
convertible bonds.

The Group determines the fair value of share options
at the date at which they are granted and the fair value
of derivative portion of the convertible bonds at each
reporting date with reference to the fair value estimated
under a valuation model which are commonly used in
the market. The assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are subject to managements’
best estimation. Changes in assumptions about these
assumptions could affect reported fair value of share
options and derivative portion of the convertible bonds.
Management use their judgments to make assumptions
that are mainly reference to the historical data of
comparable listed companies.

More details of the assumptions made are included in
Note 22 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Management of the Group has not made any significant
critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

4 EBEESEERAEE)

4.1

4.2

BRI AT RER

AR PR KAE AR R RAR -
WEAZ EFHEFTRARD HARE
BREERMBE o et REBEREFER T —
WRFEEHEERABBZREEFL
EARBZEARRSBRENA R
BERABREBESFZITET AL -

AREB2EREMSBEER ZMHE
BAfEFZ AR EEEBRER R T
BHZAREBERABRRESTETA
BN EREBHNZAAE - 5TERE
BHEZAAREMAZBRAREIERE
EhREMET - REFBRRELEZR
REBAETEMZ M BRIER R
BERABRBRESZIOTETASD - &
BEERAIE  YER2EAELL
REM AR ZELBIBIEHRER °

BREAFMEHBRERZ EZFHBENGEE
B 755 3 2% B £ 22 K2 26 ©

ERAEE S HRRFFEFHZEE
¥ iR

AR BB IR B W R LA SR [ P FE AR Y
BRTBORE R E 2 36 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
A 3 0 5 e Mt R

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the executive directors
and senior management of the Group. The Group’s operating
businesses are structured and managed separately according
to the natures of their operations and the services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers services which are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. The Board of Directors considers the business from
a geographical and product perspective.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the margin dealing segments engage in the provision
of leveraged foreign exchange, commodity and index
trading services in Australia, Hong Kong and New
Zealand;

(b) the unleveraged cash dealing segment engages in the
provision of non-leveraged foreign exchange trading
services in New Zealand. Unleveraged cash dealing
services were provided to corporate clients, in particular,
those clients engaged in money changing business for
the purpose of hedging their cash positions and meeting
settlement obligations. The Group is rewarded by the
spread between the price quoted to our clients and the
price offered by our market makers; and

(c) the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) business segment
engages in provision of trading and settlement of
precious metals in PRC.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with
reference to the prices charged to third parties and there was
no change in the basis during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

7 EBERE

REDHOBMELTANBRAARERITES
EEREEBRHENANBRSE 2 - AK
B AR & RS T S B E AR R AR
BoRAEMNRER - AEBE NE XKD
B RIRHEARIS RIS S B AL - HARTS
P2 [\ K [0 ¥ A B B A SR 50 86 -
EFeitwEREMARERER -

BREEG D BNFBHEmT

(a) RBSRFHEBREBRBRM - BB R
MR EEEIMNE - B R EE
R R%s

(b) JFERARSRFH AR ERAIEH
REIFERENINER 5 RS - AEE
AAREFEHMIFEREARSRZ IR
% LHEZEREPRERSET
METHEEEEM2RBEE L IRER
WEPF - ARERTEFPHRESR
REB TS RIEHAER D RIE
B R

(c) HEARLME ([HE])EHED R
ERFRERECBRX I NEE -

ENEEMRZ S (A) H2RRBAEAE=)
W B MmEST - BREEEREE-F
—N\FERZE—+tF+H=1T—HIF
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 DEMEGE)
The segment information provided to the management for the HE—_ZE—NEEN_ZEZ—F+F+_H4
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2018 =+—HIEFE  RARESBREERRE
and 2017 is as follows: RENSEBERDAT -
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLFE
New Hong New
Zealand Kong  Australia Zealand
margin margin margin cash PRC
dealing dealing dealing dealing business  Unallocated  Elimination Total
REW B Y REW
REERS REERE REERS  KERE  TEEE RAR b @it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THR ThR THR THR THR THR TH7 THT
Segment revenue and ARUEREMA -
other income:
Foreign exchange and other trading  REINFEFHSNE
income eamed from external REBIZHA
customers 365,363 4 1513 3,309 - - - 376,249
Inter-segment sales PEEEE - 119,973 10,484 - - - (130457) -
Segment revenue PG 365,363 119,977 18,057 3,309 - - (130,457) 376,249
Fee and commission income BARESMA 54,067 - 78 - - 2,301 - 56,446
QOther income A 1,587 - 17 37 1,657 35,118 - 38,416
Total revenue and other income eyt oNE 421,017 119977 18,152 3,346 1,657 31419 (130,457) 41,1
Segment profi(loss) ABEH/ (BR) 63,160 106,070 13,034 2,962 (606 37419 216,583
Other unallocated staff costs A FARETHA (35,403)
Other unallocated administrative. ~~ EfADETHR
and operating expenses BERY (129,423)
Profit before tax AT A 51,757
Income tax expense SRR (17,508)
Proft for the year FERA 34,49
Other segment information: EfAHER
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% * BERRXENE
equipment and amortisationof ~ REFEERH
intangible assets - 110 26 - 1,815 12,730 14,681
Lease payments BEM - 1,492 - - 1,816 10,920 14,208
Finance cost HERE - - - - - 28,428 28428

%

& iy B 4
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 oS (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZE—+H&+-_A=+—8ItFEE
New Hong New
Zealand Kong Australia Zealand
margin margin margin cash PRC
dealing dealing dealing dealing business  Unallocated  Elimination Total

il (0 i i
REERS HRELRE REERH  RERG FEEE AR 3f it
HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000
TARL TER TER TARL TER TER TARL TER

Segment revenue and other income: - 2 SREREfIA ¢
Foreign exchange and other trading  REINIE ERSNE

income eamed from external REMZHHA

customers 364,042 142 4472 1,136 28,369 - - 398,161
Inter-segment sales AEHEE - 74673 9945 - - = (84,618) =
Segment revenue R 364,042 74,815 1447 1,136 28,369 - (84,618) 398,161
Fee and commission income BRRAEKA 101,444 - 13 - - 7318 - 108,775
Other income(losses) 2N/ (BE) 309 = 18 % (2,056) 9,700 = 799
Total revenue and other income. W RAHMABE 465,795 74815 14,448 1,161 26313 17018 (84618) 514932
Segment profit(loss) AR/ (BB) 50,535 64,064 10,036 (79) (26) 17018 141548
Other unallocated staf costs ERARETHA (81,579)
Other unallocated administrative and £tk 2 B/ THR

operating expenses BERY (74.950)
Profit before tax BtangT 35,019
Income tax expense FERAX (7,665)
Profit for the year ER R 27,354
Other segment information: HhHHER

Depreciation of property, plantand 1% * BER#fE
equipment and amorisationof  FEREREAE

intangible assets B - 66 26 - 1,890 10,539 12,521
Lease payments g = 762 o = 2428 10205 13,395
Finance cost HARA 3% - - - 1217 163 1415

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s major
income from external customers is derived from its operations
in New Zealand.

DEERE (4E)

ARRARERES - REBRBINEEEFH
TEWAREERAOR AL ST

2018 2017

—E—-N\EF —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FBT

New Zealand 4 PE 8 368,672 365,178
Others H A, 7,577 32,983
376,249 398,161

The locations of its non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) are as follows:

HIERDEE(TREEERIEEE) D
HmaT

2018 2017

—B-NF = tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong BB 19,446 13,831
New Zealand 41 7 8 29,794 23,761
Australia B 3,240 958
PRC =) 809 5,665
53,289 44,215

None of the external customers contributes more than major
of the Group’s trading income individually in the respective
years.

Information on segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed
as this information is not presented to the Board of Directors as
they do not assess performance of reportable segments using
information on assets and liabilities.

MEIBEFEBREFEAEERR S
ABEZHD °

MR EERUEEAENEER S ENE
T ETTRESHHRE  MARS BE
EREEHERNTIESRTEES BN
b mPTEARER -

&
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6 OTHER INCOME 6 HfA
2018 2017
—=E2-N\#F — Tt
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT T
Interest income ) S A 4,945 2,661
Exchange gains, net bE H W as - JFER 9,410 5,384
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEEZEE - (438)
Fair value gain on the embedded AR E S # AR
derivative portion of the convertible PTET A2
bonds (Note 22) NREWES (iE22) 26,042 =
Amortisation of deferred losses AR ESFEIRE D 2
on conversion component of the IRIE E RS (A 7222)
convertible bonds (Note 22) (1,982) -
Others H Aty 1 389
38,416 7,996
7 STAFF COSTS 7 EIRAE
2018 2017
—=E2-N\F —E—+4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA(BIEEEHS
remuneration (Note 28)): (K#13E28)) -
Salaries, bonus and allowances T & - {641 &oERL 94,143 54,144
Pension scheme contributions RS T B K 1,151 1,319
Staff option expenses (Note 26) B THIRER (Ait26) 6,375 1,468
101,669 56,931




THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo o B B R R B
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING 8 f{THRHMKEEREX
EXPENSES
2018 2017
—=E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFAT
Management fees paid to the then SN TEREEZERA AR

immediate holding company EEEB (M1:F30(a)i)

(Note 30(a)(i)) 696 664
Other office occupation expenses HEmeEriEdARX 3,193 4,004
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN &

— Audit services — Bz AR 7 3,223 2,966

— Non-audit services — B IRTE 302 679
Information services expenses B AR X 4,136 6,417
Professional and consultancy fee BENAAE 5,558 6,798
Repair and maintenance S M HEE (RIERGHEE)

(including system maintenance) 17,250 13,708
Marketing, advertising and MSHE BEEAEERAX

promotion expenses 27,166 22,864
Handling fee expenses FEBRX 8,349 22,126
Travelling expenses =R & 4,255 3,966
Entertainment expenses = 1,055 970
Insurance R Bz 768 845
Bank charges RITE R 510 975
Staff training 8 T3 425 388
Client’s debit balances written off = Al AL SR e 347 1,091
Impairment of intangible asset (Note 13) #ER A E 2 RE (A12F13) 2,937 1,730
Donations B/ 2,364 1,313
Others HAtb 2,042 4,900

84,576 96,404

&
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9 MMEBHHEX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BB R E T ThiRE N8 (4 = FE =R B 5w 7
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit during the LA16.5% (== —+4F : 16.5%) B Fi K=t
years. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on IREHE - BINKEFIAF B IR AN FEE G5
the estimated assessable profit during the years at the rates FESRF R AN EE KL E R R mTT
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group HF R E o IRIEE M RIFSIED » AEE

operates. The income tax expenses of the Group are charged AT - BN kB FFEREZ SR

at a tax rate of 28% (2017: 28%) in New Zealand, 30% (2017:
30%) in Australia and 25% (2017: 25%) in PRC in accordance

with the local tax authorities.

1%28% (—EFE—+4F : 28%) - 30% (— =
—+tF :30%) K25% (ZF—+4F : 25%)
BB REHE o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T

Current tax: BIEATR IR

Charge for the year FAZH 16,064 4,992

Over-provision in prior year EFBREREE (402) (680)

Others Hth, 486 444

Deferred tax: IEEFEIA ¢

Charge for the year (Note 19) FAMBR (H5E19) 1,360 2,909

Income tax expense FriSfi 17,508 7,665

2018 2017
—E-N\HE —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000

= FHET &
E Profit before income tax & BT 15 A5 Al g A1) 51,757 35,019
N Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate &% /A € fi R 51 & #) Fi 18 8,540 5,778
2 Effect of different taxation rates in E A B R AR B 2R A 52 &
% other countries 4,319 1,031
5 Income not subject to tax AR A (4,780) (1,156)
& Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 8,116 1,814
z Temporary differences not recognised R ERE £ =58 1,229 434
= Over-provision in prior year A F R (402) (680)
& Others Hth 486 444
Z
é Income tax expense Fir 15 B 7 2 17,508 7,665
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10 DIVIDENDS

The Board does not declare the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the respective periods.

10 RE

EFEefEREBE2_FT—N\F+_A4
=t+—HIEFENTAEKE (T —t5F:
7)o

11 SRER
() BRELXER

SREARFIRAR TR HAE
532 FIR AR & HIRIE B (T AR 10
DO 4 BT 5 o

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT F&T
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIREFREE ABG R
of the Company 34,249 27,354

No. of shares No. of shares

BHEEE anE4=!

Weighted average number of BTSRRI INE T HE
ordinary shares in issue 2,033,290,000 2,033,241,644
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RREARZF] GBl) 1.68 1.35

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the years, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
under the share option scheme and convertible bonds
into ordinary shares.

(b) BERBERF

BREER T IRIEF AN QB IE
REABMGRHNTE - AFrtE &
B INEFHBRFACEITE B
A - RERREERET S LAHR
PAEF AR B TIE R EIRPTA A #E
FENBE S BBSE B AR
BERTH T BN -
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 11 B8RER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) BRE#EERF(Z)
2018 2017
=ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FAET
Profit attributable to equity holders RATIREFTE AEG R
of the Company 34,249 27,354
Finance cost on convertible bonds, Al EH 2 B E KA -
net of tax (Note 22) MBRBIE (A7 a722) 23,713 =
Fair value gain on the embedded AR E S IR AR
derivative portion of the convertible ~ $74 T A& H 2
bonds (Note 6) NRBERE (AiEe) 1,982 =
Amortisation of deferred losses on BIEY T3 B dvd
conversion component of the IEAE B R 8 (AT aE6)
convertible bonds (Note 6) (26,042) -
Adjusted profit attributable to B AR R AR
equity holders of the Company A AL & 33,902 27,354

No. of shares

4B E

No. of shares

Bin 88

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

Adjustments for convertible bonds

(Note 22)

B 31T E B A INAE 8

Al IR E A AR (Hit22)

2,033,290,000

326,264,273

2,033,241,644

Weighted average number of shares
for the purpose for calculating

diluted earnings per share

AREEREERNA
B A7 hnE 152X

2,359,554,273

2,033,241,644

Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

BhEER N (BIL)

1.44

1.35

Note:

Share options are not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017 as those were anti-dilutive.

Wiz -
MBI RS Mt ERES
T N\FR-F—LET=A=+—Bit

FEZEREERNEGIL BAEAERA -



12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Y- - BERRE

Furniture,
fixturesand ~ Computer  Leasehold Motor
equipment  equipment improvements vehicles Total
HE £EB
ki  ERRE  HERE RE b
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THT T
As at 1 January 2017 RZZ—t5—A—H
Cost XA 9,368 16,636 11,693 1,927 39,624
Accumulated depreciation 28 (7,686) (10,656) (9,208) (1,674) (29,224)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,682 5,980 2,485 253 10,400
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE-E—+tF+-A=1t—HILFE
Opening net carrying amount FREFE 1,682 5,980 2,485 253 10,400
Exchange adjustments R 68 125 102 7 302
Additions NE 54 1,968 - 2,250 4212
Disposals HE - 4 (460) - (464)
Depreciation Vil (605) (2,395) (1,339) (452) (4,791)
Closing net carrying amount ERERFE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+—H
Cost XA 8,602 17,191 11,305 4,067 41,165
Accumulated depreciation ZHHE (7,403) (11,517) (10,517) (2,009) (31,446)
Net carrying amount RHFE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE-E—\F+_A=1t—HIFE
Opening net carrying amount ENREFE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
Exchange adjustments i R (42) (85) 7 21) (14)
Additions RE 220 1,366 2,828 - 4,414
Depreciation il (549) (2,404) (1,043) (542) (4,538)
Closing net carrying amount EREHFE 828 4,551 2,580 1,495 9,454
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=+—H
Cost XA 8,348 17,881 13,637 3,934 43,800
Accumulated depreciation ZHFE (7,520) (13,330) (11,057) (2,439) (34,346)
Net carrying amount REFE 828 4,551 2,580 1,495 9,454

&
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13 BEE

Trading
Computer right
software (Note) Total
REE
EREMG (H15t) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+%—H—H
Cost B 37,274 1,675 38,949
Accumulated amortisation RETE#H (11,502) = (11,502)
Net carrying amount REFE 25,772 1,675 27,447
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZZT—tF+-_A=+—HIEFE
Opening net carrying amount FAREFE 25,772 1,675 27 447
Exchange adjustments B 5 5R 2 778 55 833
Additions NE 15,676 - 15,676
Amortisation B (7,730) - (7,730)
Impairment (Note 8) i {E (f7E8) - (1,730) (1,730)
Closing net carrying amount FRIEEFE 34,496 = 34,496
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZA=+—H
Cost AR 52,702 1,802 54,504
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEHRRE
impairment (18,206) (1,802) (20,008)
Net carrying amount REHE 34,496 = 34,496
For the year ended 31 December 2018  HE=ZT—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE
Opening net carrying amount FAREFE 34,496 - 34,496
Exchange adjustments b i F (1,055) - (1,055)
Additions NE 23,474 - 23,474
Amortisation i (10,143) - (10,143)
Impairment (Note 8) A (fE8) (2,937) - (2,937)
Closing net carrying amount FERIEEFE 43,835 - 43,835
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-—N\F+=ZA=+—H
Cost B 7R 73,797 1,708 75,505
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEHRRE
impairment (29,962) (1,708) (31,670)
Net carrying amount RMEFE 43,835 - 43,835
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 13 BEEE (&)
Note:The balance represents the fee paid pursuant to the membership Kt - AR RIEBER R EESB R ML
agreement with TPME, which is not subject to amortisation and NEERZENNER  BABHHEE
is assessed for impairment annually. On 2 June 2017, the Group FEETHEN G R_ZE—tF /A
received a notice from TPME that it will adjust its precious metals “H O AEEREXREESCBIZIA
spot trading business with a view to reduce the trading risks, - HEARSSBRESSER A
and it will suspend the opening of new trading positions for all BIER Z R - Wi E =R 5 FT kT
spot commodities traded on the exchange with effect from 12 ERERRRGIEITHRHET B
June 2017 (the “Suspension”), as a result, the balance was fully T—tFNAT_BRBEXR(EEE
impaired as at 31 December 2017. H]) AR =_ZE—+F+=—_A=+—

H - BEAEKREZZBRE -

14 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 14 H{tEWKRE - BANRERIZS
DEPOSITS

2018 2017

ZE-NFE —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET TAT

Rental and utility deposits HERAHAZBIES 4,569 3,954
Prepayments TE FRIE 2,831 5,961
Other receivables H fth pE W SR IE 2,332 1,909
Provision for expected credit loss TEHR = E BB EHE (40) =
Total #a5 9,692 11,824
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables and 7R 68 B E At JE UK TE SRR & Y BRI (B B A

deposits approximate to their fair values. NREMRE -

4

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 $TES/mIT A
2018 2017
—=2-N\#F — T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Current assets mEBEE
Derivative contracts PTEEH 67,400 139,567
Current liabilities REBAEE
Derivative contracts PTEEH (5,374) (30,646)
Total e 62,026 108,921
The Group trades in foreign currencies, commodities and REBFBERBES R HEGHETING -
other products through its margin trading business. In order HmEkEMERRS o  ARENEETT
to protect against their exposures to fluctuations in foreign ER M mEREE AT E  KEE
exchange rates and commodity prices, the Group has entered RIE T G AIE R BEE A RIRITE] L IR
into a number of foreign exchange forward transactions and INERIAIZ G R EEBAEHL -
contracts for difference with the Group’s bankers in the normal
course of business.
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward R—_E—NFR_ZE—+F+=-A4
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2018 and 2017 =t+—H HARFEEHINESLHON A
are HK$9,875,738,000 and HK$14,292,459,000 respectively. E A& F 5D FA9875,738 0007 JT &

14,292,459,000/% 7T °

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



16

17

I'HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
m/T Ej‘ % ﬁ% l}ﬁ

BALANCES DUE FROM AGENTS

16 FEWKIE A& RR

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHET

Balances due from: fE W At £R -
— agents — R 21,756 83,969
— TPME (Note 30 (vii)) —REESBRHFN (M12#30(vii)) 569 4,582
Provision for expected credit loss TR E BB RE (574) =
Total st 21,751 88,551
The carrying amounts of the Group’s balances due from AEEFEMRIBASOBEREREERNLE
agents approximate to their fair values. The Group is free BE - NEB A RER B RIREEZ FRIE

to withdraw the funds from accounts maintained with these
agents at any time.

AR MERPAMESR °

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST 17 B2 NEBEITEGUREFRSEHEITE
BANK BALANCES 53

2018 2017
—E-N\H =2 —gs
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 FET
Cash and bank balances R& MIRTTH R 550,591 430,198
Fixed deposits with banks RITE HIfF K 174,816 87,553
Client trust bank balances HEEFEIR1TE R 255,785 586,299
Provision for expected credit loss TEEEEEERE (426) B
980,766 1,104,050

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations
in the ordinary course of business, and therefore they are not
included as cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
cash flows.

AEBREFRE S BB B (EFERIBL
RFE  UREEFPKRAE —BREBIZHNF
e AEBAABAEFNERFERAD
SR BEEXRBBETES - FZER
B EAARSRERTINER S RRE
EE® -

&

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST 17 BRERBITEMRUREFEERITE

BANK BALANCES (continued) &k (&)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, fixed deposits of RN\ FER_ZE—+F+_A=1+—
HK$90,359,000 and HK$86,015,000 respectively are pledged H  90,359,0007% 7T }86,015,000/% 7T Y
to banks for banking facilities and office lease bonds. No THERD RIRMIEITEE M AETHERE
overdraft facility was utilised by the Group as at 31 December S FRT R N\FER_ZFT—+
2018 and 2017. None of the bank deposits are placed with F+-A=1+—H8 AEEHESHHITMN
market makers as collateral as at 31 December 2018 and BRFEH PN E— N\ FhR_E—+F+=
2017. A=+—8  #ERIEFARTSHERT

EfFmEHm -

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MESREenERmMs B kBEEEE
cash and cash equivalents comprises of the following: VBRI &KIA :

2018 2017

—EB-NFE T tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THET

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E &R 550,591 430,198

Fixed deposits with bank with FRETHS =& A I E| Bf Y
original maturity within three months RITE BT X 84,457 1,538
635,048 431,736

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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18 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the
lease asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.

18 BEHERIE

HEREBEER L AHEEERNEMR -
BEBNEMHR  ZFRMNSEREE

A o
2018 2017
—E-NFE —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TA&T
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHEAEERE
— minimum lease payments — HEEEMNK
Not later than 1 year —F R 51 56
Later than 1 year and no later —FBEAENRN
than 5 years 155 228
206 284
Future finance charges on FEHERRKBE F
finance leases (18) (32)
Present value of finance lease MEHSAERE
liabilities 188 252
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: REHSEEHREENT :
2018 2017
—B-NF | —FT—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Not later than 1 year —F R 42 47
Later than 1 year and no later —FBERAENRN
than five years 146 205
188 252

The Group leases various vehicles under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are 3 to 5 years
and ownership of the assets lies within the Group.

AEBRBETAIEHEORERS HHE LA
ETER - -HEHA=Z=NF MEEM

BHERAEEME -

&
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION 19 IEFEBIE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual BB A E RN BN ER T 18 & A B RN AR
entity basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax TIB A EEE - mELERIES X [E—#E
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred B ARl A EREARRERIEEEZHE
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, BEEE  RIERBRE EZEREANN SR
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances (Wt M) SH T -

within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Deferred tax assets to be recovered REFIIA & E
after more than twelve months (FB@121E A 12 Y [@l) 1,719 1,367
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled EEFIE B E
after more than twelve months (EBim121E A & 1) (4,902) (3,206)
(3,183) (1,839)
The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) HABEBBERNIENELERBEE
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the (BE)NEELo RFREEWNT -
movements during the year are as follows:
Other
Employee temporary
benefits Depreciation  differences Total
Hit
g EEEF nE EREES st
= HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Z FHT FHT THT THT
= At 1 January 2017 R-Z—+%—A—H 1,151 (835) 709 1,025
2 Exchange adjustments B 5 SR 37 (3) 11 45
= Charge for the year F R (45) (1,612) (1,252) (2,909)
3 At 31 December 2017 R-_Z—+%+-A=1+—8 1,143 (2,450) (532) (1,839)
> |
= At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-N\FE—H[—H 1,143 (2,450) (532) (1,839)
Z Exchange adjustments BE 5 A (55) 39 32 16
s (Charge)/credit for the year FRER) A (339) (1,456) 435 (1,360)

At 31 December 2018 R_ZE-—N\E+=-A=+—H 749 (3,867) (65) (3,183)
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 20 HENREREFTARE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
Accrued rental benefit FEFT S F 171 231
Accrued audit fees BT EZER 2,255 2,781
Other accruals H et &M 3,047 5,257
Commission payable A S 6,020 27,825
Employee entitiements (R E 11,458 11,820
Other payables H At & A~ 58 2,857 5,358
Interest payable FEAFIS, 5,835 —
31,643 53,272
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and AREBHMENRXIBEREABENERE
accrued liabilities approximate to their fair values. HENAKEMRE
CLIENTS’ BALANCES 21 BEF&RR
The balances represent margin deposits received from clients % E AR B S E 5 EE R W EE R
and the realised profit or loss from their trading activities under RBEGERRESETES FHHNCEHIR
normal course of business. The carrying amounts approximate mAMEETTE - BREEHEE AR ERE -
to their fair values.
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 22 THBRES
Pursuant to subscriptions agreements entered into by BEAANR_E—N\F—A=-_+HBE]

the Company on 25 January 2018, the Company issued
convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 on 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”). The
convertible bonds entitled the holders to convert them into
326,264,273 ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.613 (the “Conversion Price”) per share of the
Company at any time from the day following one year from the
Issue Date up to the fifth business day immediately before the
second anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Maturity Date”) and
bear interest at 7.5% per annum. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or cancelled, the Company has to redeem the
convertible bonds on Maturity Date at 100% of the outstanding
principal amount, together with accrued interest, if any.

S RE R ZIKL\IJ BERZZT—NF=Z
A+=B (®THHB))BTASREA
200,000,000/ 7T 2 A] # A & % - AJ A A%
BEHE T8 AR AT A 81T H BREET —
FrBAREEETITHERmAES
A AMEEEA ([2/HIA ) IFEARIBER 1%
B EFNR0.613B T ([RRE ) Eins
RA 7] 2326,264,273E B - FFI KA
7.5% ° BRIEIRAIMER - EHsEHE - AQ
AIZAR B B B IR R BB AN & 58 2 100%5E
RFEETFIE (nE) BRI AT AR ES -

A8

I %
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22 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The Conversion Price is subject to anti-dilutive adjustments
due to change of management and anti-dilution events such
as consolidation, sub-division or reclassification, bonus issue,
capital distribution, rights issue of shares or options over
shares, rights issue of other securities, issue at less than the
then current market price, other issue at less than the then
current market price, modification of right of conversion, other
offer to shareholders and other events. If the Conversion Price
pursuant to any adjustment is below the par value of each
share, the Conversion Price shall be adjusted to an amount
equal to the par value of on share instead.

Save as disclosed above, the terms and definitions of the
convertible bonds are set out in the respective subscription
agreements and disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 25 January 2018 and 12 February 2018.

In the presence of the adjustments to the Conversion Price
mentioned above, the convertible bonds may not exchange
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instrument
for a fixed amount of cash. Therefore, the components of
the convertible bonds are accounted for separately as host
liability component and conversion option derivative. The fair
values of the host liability component and conversion option
derivative were determined at the respective date of issue.
The host liability component represented the present value of
the contractual stream of future cash flows discounted using
the prevailing market interest rate of similar non-convertible
instruments and carried at amortised cost. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 19.25%. Subsequent
to the initial recognition, the liability component is carried
at amortised cost while the conversion option derivative
embedded in the convertible bonds are measured at fair value,
where changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

22 AR ESR (2

BMEESNEREELRESRIELRES
R MaxEREERABREMHEEA6
AR EF DR - BITAR - BEADIK
FRA BB A  EAbRE S 2 (A% - IER
ERIBITMERET  RERERRTHE
ZEAMBEETT - (ERTHARME - MBRCRIEHE
b B R EMF o WA EA ARG R
BEERESRERN ZEE - BERESHE
EEEFRBROIEEZSRE -

bR Bt ERE AN - ATARE S AR R E
EFNSENRERZERN - WRAAFH
HE—_TE—N\F—A-_+HRBEE=_ZT—N
FZ_A+—HMRAEFRERE -

£ Eata RERERNBERT - AJRERES
FOREBEIREE S MRS R EE BE
NARFIB SR T A - Bt - AT BRE
FHVAARER D 0 BIR E B ERR D MR B
PTHETEAR - TR EE D MRREITE
TANAAEKREAMNETANEE - £
BERDIEARRIRS ARG LB R ELL
RAHR R T ARITH IS RAERMIRE
WIZEHK AT - BIEEE D WERA =X
7319.25% ~ M atER %L - AEH DI
BSHRCART AR - MR AR AR E S B IR AR
ENETEZAREE EAREES



22 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fk 0 B 25 A B

The components for the issue of the convertible bonds and

22 AR ES(E)

BT R E S AR BB Y S X R A

their movements for the year are set out below: EYESRAR O INE
Financial
Financial liabilities at
liabilities at fair value
amortised through
cost profit or loss
- debt - derivative
portion portion Total
RARE
REE ST ABRERN
RAGEN tRAE
cRAR —-fT&E
— &5 IEHHG nE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2018 R=ZB-N\F—-H—H - - -
Issuance of convertible bonds BT A[ R EH 181,815 42,040 223,855
Deferred losses upon issuance 2517 iEIE 518 (19,375) (4,480) (23,855)
Fair value gain recognised EER AR BN (H76)

(Note 6) - (26,042) (26,042)
Interest expense s 28,399 - 28,399
Interest payment FI B AR (13,274) - (13,274)
Amortisation of deferred losses & #2817 I 1T /&5 18 # §5

on conversion component (H1:#6)

(Note 6) - 1,982 1,982

At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-N\F+=H=+—H 177,565 13,500 191,065

A8

I 5
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23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 A
Number Issued
of shares share
in issue capital
ERTROBE SRTRE
HK$’000
FAET
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 2,033,240,000 20,332
Issuance of new ordinary shares upon 771 B8 A% 4 B 2577 A9
exercise of share options E AR 50,000 1
As at 31 December 2017 R-T—+tF+-_HA=+—H 2,033,290,000 20,333
As at 1 January 2018 and RZE—N\F—A—HK
31 December 2018 —E-N\FE+=-_B=+—H 2,033,290,000 20,333
24 CAPITAL RESERVE 24 EXRFHE
The balance represents the difference between the book % %5 82 FEKVB Kunlun New Zealand
value of the net assets of KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited, Limited + KVB Kunlun Pty Limited % & f@
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited and KVB Kunlun International (HK) B(EBS BERATEEFEMNEEE
Limited over the par value of the shares issued by LXL Capital Ed| XL Capital Il Limited * LXL Capital IlI
[l Limited, LXL Capital Ill Limited and LXL Capital IV Limited in Limited ZLXL Capital IV Limited/E & =
exchange for these subsidiaries as part of the reorganisation T — —FRRMEAE Lo BUARBZSE
completed in 2012. B ARMmEBETHRMDEEBENZERE -

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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25 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 25 & T EifiELaE oY E
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, AEEMEZHEAENEFH (BREESR
including both cash and non-cash changes are as follows: JEIR S EH)) HI| W :
Finance Finance
leases due leases due  Convertible  Interest
within 1 year after 1 year bonds payable Other Total

R-FR3H R-FLIG
ZBMEEE ZMEHE TRREx EFARE Hity ast

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx TET TEr THEx TExR THE=n
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-NF-A-H 47 205 - - - 252
Changes from financing REEEREHEH .
cash flow:
Repayment of finance EERERERE
lease obligations (12) (42) - - - (54)
Issuance of convertible BBk ES
bonds - - 200,000 - - 200,000
Interest paid BFE - - (7,439) - (29)  (7,468)
Interest payable ERFIE - - (5,835) 5,835 - -
Exchange adjustments ERAE @ {17 - - - (21)
Other changes: Hit 5 :
Interest expenses MERX 1 - 28,399 - 29 28,439
Fair value gain on the ARESRARETH
embedded portionof the 2 A7 EKES
convertible bonds - - (26,042) - - (26,042
Amortisation of the deferred AT AR (& A8 & 217
losses on conversion LB E R
component of the
convertible bonds - - 1,982 - - 1,982
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\E
+=HA=+—-H 42 146 191,065 5,835 - 197,088

RREBEMENARAT % e
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25 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 25 Bi& T EiffiELaE YR (&)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Finance Finance Borrowing Borrowing
leases due leases due due within due after
within 1 year after 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
R—FREH R-FRIB —FRIE —FRIH
JHERE  cRENE 21 21 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT T THT
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—t&-H-H 18 = 55,835 - 55,853
Changes from financing ~ BMEFEBRER
cash flow: BE:
Repayment of finance EEREHERE
lease obligations (41) - - - (41)
Repayment of borrowing BEREE - = (55,835) = (55,835)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 1 4 = = 5
Other changes: Hin @5
New finance lease HEERE 63 201 - - 264
Interest on finance lease REMEZFE 6 - - - 6
At 31 December 2017 R=%-tF
+ZA=+-H 47 205 - - 252
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 August 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted 40,000,000 share options to 95 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.95 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
35 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted share options
which are exercisable for a period of three years commencing
on the date of grant to 18 August 2018. 12 out of 95 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling on
the first anniversary of the date of grant to 18 August 2019,
with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 48 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the
date falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to
18 August 2019, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to the directors and
chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

26 HBARESTE

RZZE—RFENATNAE  KARIESE
m195% A ([ #&E#H A ) £ H40,000,00013
BARE - HESREAQARRAFEFRE
B0.01 8 T 1 3T AR -

% LB AR AE IR T AR AR (9 0.958 TL AV (B 1%
FLAIT(E - B BTN RESRE
WHAA Rl o 95 Z IER AR B35 R A&
BTN EL A== —N\F/\A
+NABAIE=FZHBEAITEZ BRRE -
BHERAFTH12BERAER TR
BEHBH—RAFERBEAE_T—NFEN
A+ NBAIE=FZHERNTHEZER
W RBEHARBRE BB —F 82T
ABHIER NER TR AKE HHARBEFTE
BEsTE=F—hF/N\A+/\HAEILMRF
ZEARIATTE 2 ERRE - BB EABR T
HHEAREET R F o B % #940,000,00017 &
RiES - RAREEREETHABER
12,200,0001% B A% 42 -

AEBY EERHIEEEEARSHED L
MEERBRE -
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 BRRRESTE (&)

MARTTENBEREZBEZZHMT :

Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as

follows:
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Forfeited Exercised asat
31 December during during during  31December  Exercise Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017 the year the year the year 2018 price  period
R=B-tF H-2-N%
tZA=t-H RER TZR=t-H
ERA REAH HAGTE  RERERH RN REATE HATE EE kS
HKS
BT
Liu Stefan 19 August 2015 8,300,000 - (8,300,000) - - 0.95 19 August 2015 to
18 August 2018
Bz ZE-RENATIA “E-RFN\ATAA
EIR-N\E
NATIR
Huang Songyuan 19 August 2015 3,500,000 - (3,500,000) - - 09 19 August 2015 o
18 August 2018
EVE)A “E-RENATAA “2-REN\A+NA
EIE-N\F
NATIR
Wong Yiu Kit Emest 19 August 2015 250,000 - - - 250,000 095 19 August 2017 to
18 August 2019
Rk ZE-RENATHA “E-+FN\ATAA
EIENE
NATIR
Stephen Gregory McCoy 19 August 2015 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - 095 19 August 2015 o
18 August 2018
Stephen Gregory McCoy ZE-RENATAA “2-REN\A+NA
= EIE)\F
s NATI\R
E Zhao Guixin 19 August 2015 300,000 - (300,000) - - 0.95 19 August 2015 t0
S 18 August 2018
Z BER “2-RENATHA “T-RENATAA
g EIE)\F
= NATI\R
=
; Corenlis Jacobus Keyser 19 August 2015 300,000 - (300,000) - - 095 19 August 20150
9 18 August 2018
O Corenlis Jacobus Keyser ZE-RENATAA “E-RENATAA
2 EIE)\f
2 NATI\R
2
z
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 EIRESTE ()
Outstanding QOutstanding
as at Granted Forfeited Exercised asat
31 December during during during  31December  Exercise Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017 the year the year the year 2018 price  period
RZ2-tf RZF-N\E
tZAZ+-R RER tZh=t-H
ERA RLAH AR REREH BRW  REATE AR TEE OREE
HK$
BT
Lin Wenhui 19 August 2015 300,000 - (300,000) - - 0.95 19 August 2015 t0
18 August 2018
g “E-1ENATHA “E-1ENATHA
E2E-)\f
NATIA
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 14,050,000 - (14,050,000) - - 095 19 August 201510
18 August 2018
SELFIEE ZE-1ENATAA ZE-RENATAA
E2E-)\f
NATIA
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 095 19 August 2016t
18 August 2019
SELFIEE ZE-RENATAA ZE-~ENATAA
E2E-NE
NRTIA
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 3,750,000 - (300,000) - 3,450,000 095 19August 2017 to
18 August 2019
SELFIEE ZE-RENATAA ZZ-tENATIA
EZZ-NE
NRTIA
Consultants 19 August 2015 400,000 - (50,000) - 350,000 095 19 August 20160
18 August 2019
B ZE-1EN\ATAA ZE-ENATHA
E2ENE
NATAH
Consultants 19 August 2015 500,000 - (100,000) - 400,000 095 19 August 201710 "
18 August 2019 i
B “2-1%N\AthE “E2-+ENAHAR )
FE-NE 0
NATIB i
I
33,650,000 - (28,200,000) - 5,450,000 D<§
&

E i K] % <5 Pl 4. 1
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 19 August 2015 were
as follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.3133
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 0.821%

Expected volatility: 59.08%

Expected dividend yield: 1.63%

Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 19 August
2015, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

No share option expenses (2017: HK$381,000) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the current period.

26 FBIRHESTE (E)

— IR HIRE T R VR A LA (A R B ISR
WARME - sFFEBREALEMANER
REZRTDERESFHREM - BREE
EERELTBRENVEHRTFAMEL - B
—ZE-RFNAATNBERHOBRENF
BT :

B B B fngE 0.3133/ 7T

T RERRAEERE
R 0.821%
TEERRIE 59.08%
TEHR B ¢ 1.63%
TRERATTEA5 S BE  {7{FE2.8F

Hi - {7EE2.21%

BRENFAEEHRR-_Z—HF/\A+N
B BREEREN B - FHREERT)
2EAELBR ETAREEFERMNE
ER BRI MEE © IRE A TE BB I8
2ERBFEZENA B LR ETARNK
BE =G AN FEE(CORESREKEM
BRE -

ANEER ARG 2 s R IR B
M (ZZF—+4F : 381,000/87T) °
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 29 December 2016, the Board of Directors of the
Company granted 40,000,000 share options to 95 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.592 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
37 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted share options which
are exercisable for a period of three years commencing on
the date of grant to 28 December 2019. 9 out of 95 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling
on the first anniversary of the date of grant to 28 December
2020, with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 49 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the date
falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to 28
December 2020, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
11,750,000 share options were granted to the directors and
chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

26 FBIRHESTE (E)

RZE—XR"F+ZZHAZ=Z+hnB XA
AIEE 2 M5B AT ([EEAD KT
40,000,00017 i Ak 1 - (H1ZEREB AR A
B% A o & A% E{E0.0178 JT 9 3 3@ AR -

7% E M IR AT IR B AR AR 19 0.5927% TT A (B
T ATTE  BREAHETNSEBER
BREAF R - 957 ER AF HI7HER A
EEFIRBREEBHREAZE 2 —NF
T+ A=+ N\BAELE=FZHEAITEZ
FEARHE - 05/ R A M9 R AR
FRAIRKEBEH—AFERARFTE_E
—EFFT AT N NHARILE=FZHHM
AT 2 AR - BREBEABRX L B A
ST o BB TNA9RER AR T I
AHRMAFEARFTE_SE_EF +=
AZ+N\BAIEMFEZBHEAITEZE
Bt - SBREE AT BHRBARE - B
# 1 #940,000,00017 fE AR #EH - N A FE
EREBITHRA BEIR11,750,00017 B
T o

AEBY EERHIEEEEARSHED L
MEERBRE -

&

E i R % < Pl A 1 R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

162 g o o i 32 Wi 2

26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 BRESTE (E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as MARITEERRESE EEam T
follows:
Outstanding QOutstanding
asat  Granted  Forfeited  Exercised as at
31 December during during during 31 December  Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017  theyear  theyear  theyear 2018 price  period
R=Z-tf R-g-N%
TZA=t-R RER RER RER +=A=t-A
ERA RLAH W AT b #Rl % AR  ARE  OREE
HK$
BT
Liu Stefan 29 December 2016 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
Sl 5k “E-AE+-F-tRAR
TZA=ThB ZE-AETZAZTIE
Huang Songyuan 29 December 2016 3,050,000 - - - 3,060,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
#IER NS “E-REt-B-thRE
tZA=thA ZE-AETZAZTIR
Wong Yiu Kit Emest 29 December 2016 250,000 - - - 250,000 0592 29 December 2018 {0
28 December 2020
HEG IR ZE-N\§t-R=ThREZ
tZA=thA ZECEETC AR
Stephen Gregory McCoy 29 December 2016 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
Stephen Gregory McCoy “EAE 3 E+ZRZTNAE
+=A=thA ZE-AETZAZHIR
Zhao Guixin 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
fatid N2 “B-NFT-B-thER
+=A=thA i Sy gl W
Corenlis Jacabus Keyser 29 December 2016 300,000 = = = 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 10
28 December 2019
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “E5E Sl e =
+ZA=thA ZZ-AEtZRZHI\H
Lin Wenhui 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
iy ZE-5F “E-REt-F-TARE
+ZA=thA ZE-NETZAZTE

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 FERAESTE (&)
Outstanding Outstanding
asat  Granted  Forfeited  Exercised as at
31 December during during during 31 December  Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017  theyear  theyear  theyear 2018 price  period
RZB-t% RZ%-N\%
TERET=F RER RER RER TZR=t-H
ERA RYAH AT b Rk fif WATE  TRE  REME
HK$
BT
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 16,450,000 - (1,250,000) - 15,200,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
£ENFES 5k “E-REt-B-thRE
TZAZthA ZE-NETZAZTNR
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 900,000 - - - 900,000 0592 29 December 2017 to
28 December 2020
SEAFIES Z5-1F ZE—tF+t-R=ThRZ
i ZECEETC AR
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 6,700,000 - (1550,000) - 5,150,000 0592 29 December 2018 to
28 December 2020
SERTES ZE-5F ZE-N\Ft-R=thRZ
i o ZSIETZAZT\R
Consultants 29 December 2016 450,000 - (50,000) - 400,000 0592 29 December 2017 to
28 December 2020
Ef ZE-5F “E-tFt-f=ThAZ
tZAZthA ZEI8ETZAZTN\R
Consultants 29 December 2016 200,000 - (100,000) - 100,000 0592 29 December 2018 to
28 December 2020
Ef ZE-5F ZE-N\FtZR=thHEZ
+ZA=thA ZECEETZACH\A
37,900,000 - (2,950,000) - 34,950,000

A8

I 5
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 29 December 2016
were as follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.2385
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 1.443%

Expected volatility: 70.97%

Expected dividend yield: 0%

Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 29 December
2016, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

A total of HK$424,000 (2017: HK$1,087,000) share option
expenses were recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the current year.

26 FBIRHESTE (E)

SR AE (R A R R
PO S8 © B SRR 2 7 (8P R PO B
RRR YRR E B RAE(E - WAEE
S R it EBRRAOB BT R « 2
T NE T AT AR R AORE
POREBIT -

B B B fngE 0.2385/8 7T
%’-Jﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ% :
[ B R 1.443%
%E,B;ﬁ/)ﬁzdla : 70.97%
TEHRR B ¢ 0%
TRERTTIE (S BE : 7{EE2.8F

Hit - {TEE2.21%

BRENGERAHA-_ZT—XRE+_A
AR BRHERES B - TREIAR
BRNGSERARLR EMARIEEEH
HMBER BN REEEMERT - RENTE
HRE2EHBEaZENAIALLR ETA
ANREHENE A MNFREICBESR
B T B E

REERGEEE W FZRERNBIE
H X & H A424,0008 L (Z T — L F -
1,087,000/ 7T) ©
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 22 March 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted 40,000,000 share options to 82 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.495 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
37 out of 82 of the Grantees were granted share options
which are exercisable for a period of three years commencing
on the date of grant to 21 March 2021. 11 out of 82 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling
on the first anniversary of the date of grant to 21 March 2022,
with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 34 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the
date falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to
21 March 2022, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to the then directors
and chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

26 FBIRHESTE (E)

R-E—N\EFE=ZA=-_+=-H ARARESE
gm82E At ([E&E A ) 140,000,000
DB - HEEREAQRIRAP TR
E{HO.01 B T H T T Ak -

5% 5 A A ] 2 T AR AR 17 0.495% JT HY B
T LATTEE - BRHE B RSB &
BRUEAB R - 822 R AR RIS7THER A
ERTIREE AR E— S = —F =
AZ+—BAIE=F 7 ABRRTITE 2 EKR
HE o B2 ER AR BERAER T ]
RELHB—RAFERETE_T_—
=A=+t—BAIE=FZ2HBEAITEZE
[t - SFEE AR T BHREA —F - &8
TR AR TR N L B MBS
ERRE_ZS - —_F=A=+—HAL
FIEE 2 BRI NTT(E 2 BE A - SR B Bl = |
& B BT o B #940,000,000
MEERES  AAFRIERZEEZREETT
B A B ¥##%12,200,00017 B A% #E -

AEBY EERHIEEEEARSHED L
MEERBRE -

&
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 BRESTE (F)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as MARTTERBIES B E8han T
follows:
Outstanding QOutstanding
asat  Granted  Forfeited  Exercised as at
31 December during during during  31December  Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017  theyear  theyear  theyear 2018 price  period
Rog-L% i SIE
TZAz1-H RER  RER RER tZASt-A .
ERA REAH HA{TE Rt HRU il HATE HEE frEsE
BT
Liu Stefan 22 March 2018 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 049 22 March 201810
21 March 2021
e “T)\E Z3-\f=A-f-RZ
=R=tzH ZEC-£-fZ1-A
Huang Songyuan 22 March 2018 - 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 049 22 March 201810
Jn 2T March 2021
=8F “E)\E $-/\E=A=+-RZ
=R-tZH I g R
Wong Yiu Kit Emest 22 March 2018 - 1,550,000 = = 1,650,000 049 22 March 201810
. 21 March 2021
Rk 2N\E Ay e =
ZA=tzR ToE--EZASt-E
Stephen Gregory McCoy 22 March 2018 - 1,000,000 = = 1,000,000 049 22 March 201810
2W March 2021
Stephen Gregory McCoy 05 E-\§=A-t-H%
ZA=tzR :;:—¢ R=t+-A
Zhao Guixin 22 March 2018 - 400,000 - - 400,000 049% 22 March 2018
21 March 2021
felid “E)\E Z-\f=A-1-RZE
=R=t1zH = s H T-H
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser 22 March 2018 - 400,000 - - 400,000 0495 22 March 2018
21 March 2021
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “E-)\E B N\E=f=1z E:t
=A=t1zH ZEC#ZRCt-R
Lin Wenhui 22 March 2018 - 400,00 - - 400,000 049 22 March 201810
% ) 21 March 2021
= g “E0EF Z3-\f=R-F-R%
2 =y gl ZEC-EZACT-A
E Employees of group companies 22 March 2018 - 13600000  (800,000) - 12,800,000 049% 22 Mar’&h 2%18 fo
2 arch 2021
Z SEATER “E)\E /\ﬁ R-t-R%
Z 9 il ~2--%Zf-1-8
a Employees of group companies 22 March 2018 - 1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 049 22 March 201910
= 21 March 2022
= £817ES = S :%—jﬁ:)j_tai
= =AZtZH ZBCHZACt-R
§ Employees of group companies 22 March 2018 - 6,150,000  (1,250,000) = 4,900,000 049 22 March 2020t
O 21 March 2022
2 £ENFES “3-\F :?Eﬁ:)jj:ai
2 ZA=tzR ZRCCEZRCT-R
= Consultants 22 March 2018 - 800000  (250,000) - 550,000 04% 2 March 2019to
= 21 March 2022
Z BR “F)\E “E-NESACTCRE
= =A=tzH ZECCEZACT-A
% - 40,000,000  (2,300,000) - 37,700,000
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 22 March 2018 were as
follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.1735
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 1.668%

Expected volatility: 56.39%

Expected dividend yield: 0%

Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 22 March
2018, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

A total of HK$5,951,000 share option expenses were
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the current period.

26 FBIRHESTE (E)

— IR HIRE T R VR A LA (A R B IO
WARME - sFHEBREAREMANER
REZRTDERESHREMRT - BREE
ERERELETBRENEHRTFMEL - B
—E-)\F=ZA -t - ARENBRED
By UNE

R B B8 N 0.1735% 7T
THREREER -

R FE 1.668%
LA 56.39%
FEHREE 0%

TEHAITE S BE /b (E2.85

Hit : T B2.21%

BERENAERHRR -_FT-NF=A
— =R BREERES B - TRAIAR
BRGSERARLR EMAREEEH
HMBER BN REEEMERT - RENTE
HRE2ERHBEaZENAIEALLR ETA
ANREHENE A MNFREICBESRE
B T B E

7R EARR PSR A 2 T U 25 2R e R ) B A M
> & #£55,951,000 7T °
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27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 27 A A S5 EEREAREBEST
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company AATRZEEEB/R
As at 31 December
R+=-—HB=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\HE —FT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ASSET BE
Non-current asset FARBEE \

Investment in subsidiaries (Note 29) KRB REZ&E (H/:£29) 160,461 156,560
Total non-current assets FRBEEHAE 160,461 156,560
Current assets REEE

Cash and bank balances /& MIRTTHE & 359,908 95,674

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT 8 A B Z TR 67,426 68,638

Loans to a subsidiary BT —RHREBARZER - 101,603

Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE K H At fE UK SR8 721 301
Total current assets mEEEHAE 428,055 266,216
Total assets EEHAE 588,516 422,776
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERREE

Share capital il 20,333 20,333

Reserves (Note (a)) & (M it (a)) 202,693 199,329
Retained earnings R BT 165,842 182,635
Total equity FEREE 388,868 402,297
Non-current liability FREBEE
Convertible bonds A R & 5 191,065 =
2 Total non-current liability kRBEEEE 191,065 —
2 Current liabilities B S
= Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENGIE 69 17,321
Z Other payables and accrued liabilities E b e~ 3118 & fE =+ & & 8,514 3,158
= Total current liabilities REBREAE 8,583 20,479
§ Total liabilities BEHEE 199,648 20,479
&
f Total equity and liabilities HEZRAE 588,516 422,776
Z
z The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AARIBEABREEZeN —=T— hF
:j Board of Directors on 18 March 2019 and was signed on its — B+ N\BHLETHRUATESARAEEE -
z behalf.
5 Liu Stefan Wong Yiu Kit Ernest

Ve EEA
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27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 27 XA meEEEERRHESE (£)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (a) — Reserve movement of the Company Mizt(@)— A=A rl 2 f#EEE S
Retained
Reserves earnings
f®1E REEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
As at 1 January 2017 R=—=F—tF—H—H 198,157 156,830
Profit for the year FERF - 25,480
Share option scheme FERME T &I 1,154 314
Issuance of new ordinary shares 1T{E RS R 1T ET L @ A%
upon exercise of share options 18 11
As at 31 December 2017 R—_=ZE—+tE+=-—BA=+—8H 199,329 182,635
As at 1 January 2018 R=-22-NF—-A—H 199,329 182,635
Loss for the year FEEE - (19,804)
Share option scheme BT S 3,364 3,011
As at 31 December 2018 R—_ZEE—N\E+=-BA=+—8 202,693 165,842

BB EEmMEMARAT % iR
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 28 EENSREEENHE
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

(a) EEEM<E
AEFBHE—FT—N\FE_FT—tF
+_A=+—HItFERAQRAES
S NS EE S o

Emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the
Company by the Group during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—Z—N\E+=-A=+—HLF

E
Employer's Estimated
contribution  Discretionary value of other
Director ~ Salaryand  to pension bonuses  benefits (Note
Name of director EBfZ fee  commission scheme (Note (b)) (@) Total

HfbEAN

$ek  REig#e A f5iERE
Ehe CES 175 (Wit) W) @it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn Tin TiEn Tin Tin Tin

Executive Directors: Hi7Es:

Mr. Liu Stefan ik 484 2970 18 2918 185 28244

Mr. Huang Songyuan (Appointed on AR (RZ2-NE

21 May 2018) TAZT-REZf) 301 814 - 8,492 637 10,334
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest (Appointed on ERGTEMZE-NE
21 May 2018) TAZT-REZ{) 147 975 18 11,126 260 1252

Non-executive Directors: FUTES:
£ Mr. Li Zni Da (Retired on 21 May 2018) FEEERZE-N\E
= EA-t-REH) 4 - - - - 4
E Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy %t £ 120 - 31 324 185 660
g Mr. Li Jiong (Appointed on FREERZT-NEF
Z 21 May 2018) RA-t-REZE) 74 - - - - 74
é Mr. Xu Jiangjang (Appointed on HRBRE(WZF-NE
% 21 May 2018) TAZT-REZ{) % - - - - %4
% Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
= Ms. Zhao Guixin HEELL 20 - - - 74 314
; Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst &£ 240 - - - 74 314
% Mr. Lin Wenhui WEL A 20 - - - 74 314
g
5 2,057 4,759 67 42,860 3,158 52,901
v
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 28 EERSRTEENMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) EEME(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—_ZE—tHF+_-_A=1+—HItF
=

Estimated

Employer’s value

contribution  Discretionary of other

Director ~ Salaryand  to pension bonuses benefits
Name of director EEHZ fee  commission scheme  (Note(b))  (Note(a)) Total

vkl

#ek EXRHE  BEEA EHEE
£508 e HERR  (WEL)  WHEe) fat
HK$000  HK$OOD ~ HK$000  HK$000  HKSOOD  HKS000
TR  TET  TER  TAR  TExT  TER

Executive Directors: HIES:
Mr. Liu Stefan e 240 2,700 18 4,800 - 7,848
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick REBEE (RZF—F
(Resigned on 17 November 2017) T—ATEREE) 211 1,301 16 736 - 2,264
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Li Zhi Da FEERE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy
bk 120 - - - - 120
Independent Non-executive Directors: By F#TES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEELT 240 = = = = 240
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
it 240 = = - - 240
Mr. Lin Wenhui I8 240 - - - - 240
1,411 4,001 34 5,626 - 11,072
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, HE—_E—-N\EE_ZET—F+FE+_H4
no directors of the Group waived any emoluments and =+—HILFE BEAEEESW .
no emolument was paid to any of the directors as an T EA[ENE - BANEE I & ES ;LL
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as FEMREZEE EAIMARERES A f
compensation for loss of office. RIS B sk E SRR (e o ‘H‘
I
Note (a): Other benefits are share options. Hiit(a) : EfbiaR| AR - :\§
&
Note (b): Certain executive directors of the Company are Kiitb) - XARETHITEETZEMIE E[%
entitled to discretionary bonus payments which are TEAI T BERBEIRESE =
determined with reference to the Group’s operating ARNEBRKESES EF=H éﬂj
results, individual performance of the directors and AAFIENLIEETSEGTER %
relevant market statistics during the year. MEE ° ;‘]%



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT
fok 0 B 25 A B

28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 28 EERSHATHEHENINS (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) E=M< (&)

2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFA&T
Emoluments paid or receivable in PEARKETES (TH2E
respect of a person’s services as Qﬂﬁk%ﬁﬂ%@aﬁ) H) AR 755
. i 2 4 3k e U m Bl &
a director, whether of the company
or its subsidiary undertaking 2,057 1,411
Emoluments paid or receivable in REFRHUER AR SEMNE
respect of director’s other services ?EEHE@’H‘{MW%WEH
) : . BYAENES
in connection with the management
of the affairs of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking 50,844 9,661
52,901 11,072
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 28 EERSRTEENMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEHEEFAL

The five highest paid employees during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 included three and two
directors respectively, details of whose remuneration are
set out in Note 28(a) above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining non-directors, highest paid employees
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are
as follows:

BEZZ-—\GERF—tF+=A8
=t+—BHIFE AE&E=HEED
FEE=ZEMBES  EMEFH1S
R LB 28(a) - EMpIFEERS
HEERBE_ZT—\FER_T—+t
F+-A=+—HILFENMESFHS
YT ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Salary and commission Fekfe 1,896 3,000
Employer’s contribution to EERARESFEIHK

pension scheme 35 126

Discretionary bonuses BB AL 3,954 2,525

5,885 5,651

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of the

BE_F—\ER-F—+F+_7
=+-BLEFE  BREAZSALX
{51 41 8 00 X2 S B 3 A B 2
DR R

AREBEZEFHAL BREFIN) A9H M

Group other than the directors fall within the following BRATNEE :
bands:
2018 2017
—EBE-NFE —T—+tF
Emolument bands N E &
— HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 — 078702 1,000,0007% 7T - = \q<L
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 — 1,000,001 7t & PLV
1,500,000/ T - 2 1
— HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 — 1,500,001/t & "
2,000,000/ 7T - = X
— HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 — 2,500,001/ 72
3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
— HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 — 3,000,001/ &
3,500,0007% 7T 1 1

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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29 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 29 RMIEB AT Z’E
RZE—N\E+—A=+—8  xATR
THIME AR A B kAR

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

Particulars
of issued Equity
Place of incorporation Principal activities share capital/ interest
Company name and kind of legal entity and place of operation paid-in capital held
BRTRE/
NRER AR R EEERER TEXBREEHY BRRARE  HHENRE
LXL Capital | Limited "¢ British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$600 100%
Limited liability company. (direct)
LXL Capital | Limited <7 RERLES ARAMRA REAR RBRAES 600 T 100%
(B#)
KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited New Zealand, Provision of leveraged foreign exchange NZ$34,466,551 100%
Limited liability company. and other trading services, New (indirect)
Zealand
KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited AEH - BREEAR REERINER AR 5RE - 34,466, 55141 AT 100%
i (RIE)
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) Limited New Zealand, Provision of securities brokerage, NZ$1,000,000 100%
Limited liability company New Zealand (indirect)
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) Limited 4 #5 - BREFAA REEHEL ARH 1,000,000 F8 R 7 100%
(RIE)
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited Australia, Provision of leveraged foreign exchange AU$2,800,010 100%
Limited liability company. and other trading services, (indirect)
Australia
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited BN BREERA REERINMER LIS RE - 2N 2,800,0102 7T 100%
(RI%)
KVB Kunlun International (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong, Provision of management services, HK$100,000,000 100%
] Limited liability company. leveraged foreign exchange and (indirect)
:f other trading services,
= Hong Kong
5 ERER(BB)BRAT &% ARAERA REEERS - BEAMER 100,000,000 1T 100%
= At R 5T - A (RI%)
Z,
Z LXL Capital II Limited "o British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$400 100%
a Limited liability company. (indirect)
E LXL Capital Il Limited <7 RERAHE BREAAR RERER ZBRRES 400ET 100%
5 (RIE)
2 LXL Capital IIl Limited e ! British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$300 100%
= Limited liability company (indiirect)
= LXL Capital Il Limited ##7 EERAEE  BREMLH RERR EERLES 300£TT 100%
Z (B#)
&
Z LXL Capital IV Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
g Limited liability company (indirect)
o LXL Capital IV Limited %% KERAHE BREAAF REER  ABRLHES 100% 7T 100%
&2 Gid)
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29 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29 RIMBARZIRE (&)
Particulars
of issued Equity
Place of incorporation Principal activities share capital/ interest
Company name and kind of legal entity and place of operation paid-in capital held
BRTRE/
NRER AL SR EEERER TEEBREERE BRRAFE HENRE
LXL Capital VIII Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital VIIl Limited #<7 RBRUHES BRETAA REER RBRLES 100%7T 100%
(RI)
LXL Capital V Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US§100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital V Limited #27 RBRIHS BREAAA REER RBRLHES 100% 7T 100%
(%)
LXL Capital IX Limited M British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company. (indirect)
LXL Capital IX Limited %7 KERAHE  BREAAF REER  ZBRLES 100% 7T 100%
(%)
Yorkastle Capital Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding, Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
BHEAERATF &% BRAMLA RERK B8 1,000,000 T 100%
(RigE)
Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun Financial People’s Republic of China, Inactive, RMB50,000,000 100%
Exchange Limited Limited liability company People’s Republic of China (indirect)
HERERAHEBR AT REARAAE  AREAAH ERe% TEARLANE ARE 100%
BRAF 50,000,007 (RIE)
Note 1: No audited financial statements have been prepared as these MtaE1 - ABARZRFAT M T)E

2 I A DA E B R E
HR R A RS AR TSR -

companies are incorporated in a jurisdiction which does not
have any statutory audit requirements.

&

E i R % < Pl A 1 R
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control.

On 29 January 2015, KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited, the then
controlling shareholder of the Company, and CITIC Securities
entered into a share purchase agreement (the “Share
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which CITIC Securities has
agreed to acquire 1,200,000 shares of the Company (the “Sale
Shares”) from the controlling shareholder (the “Transaction”).
In accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement, CITIC
Securities has nominated CITIC Securities Overseas to
purchase the full legal and beneficial ownership of the Sales
Share. Subsequent to the completion of the Transaction, KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited ceased to be the fellow subsidiaries
and are now referred to as “other related parties” as they are
controlled by some common key management personnel.

Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun Financial Exchange Limited (“KVB
ZHHQ”), entered into a membership agreement with TPME
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Pursuant to the
membership agreement, TPME provides a spot trading
and settlement platform for precious metals trading and the
relevant consulting, training and management services to
KVB ZHHQ. TPME is controlled by CITIC Limited, an entity
incorporated in Hong Kong which has significant influence
over CITIC Securities Overseas.

As disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, as a result of the Suspension, the trading right of
TPME was fully impaired as at 31 December 2017.

For the outstanding balance due from or to related parties, net
amount is presented when the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends to settle on
a net basis.

30 AABLXRS

i —J7T BB ) B MEIEH = — T A&
MBEREERREH S T EEERTE
71 BB R R - B X HARIESIE
T E B Ra R -

RZZE—RF—HZ+1B  XAFEK
& A% BRKVB Kunlun Holdings Limited 2
FREREAE] SR B B e ([ IR BB B 177
&) Bt PIEEFRE RIERR R
f%1,200,0000& A~ B g 1 ([$HE IR 9 1)
(IZx5%1E]) - BREROEEHZ  F17E
AEAF IR B EREHF B INE B S IR M5 AY
EEEERERBEE - RTKRH1E
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited T~ A& R &
WMEAR - IRBAIEMEART] - REA
BERETHREZEEEABEZES -

BE_Z—RE+_A=+—HILFEH
B HWEREERIESBIZTLERA
A(ERRERE)EXZECERS
FRRIS & Bl - IRIBE B ik - RER
TBRIMRERWERZERHE—FEES
BRER S REEFE - ARBREHET
Bl R EERS - RKEESBXXZFHT
B ERODBRARIES - ZARRES
FEMACS - R EEFBINERERTE
57 o

MANAR S IS MR M 13T HE - ANE
BEE REETBRXIAZXZEER
—E—+tF+ZA=+—HE2ERME -

3 M o 1 BB P SR A B BT S
AR E A AR SIE T R S
WHR R B 25 S FUEE -
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 MEAE RS (&)
(@) The Group had the following material transactions with its (a) NEBERFENEERBMERETHNE
related entities during the year: ARXSWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FER FHAIT
Transactions with related parties BELX5
Management fee expenses for the RAT 28] iﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ%
provision of financial system services %%LHW%#‘: 2
which ipclude the provisioq of ;f%gsﬁgg R
enterprise resources planning system
support to:
— the then immediate holding company ~ — & B EZZERAE (i) 696 664
Amount paid for the provision of F'Eﬂ%?’&ﬁ?iﬁ?ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ
software development and ﬁ;ﬂ%’”ﬁ&ffgﬁﬁ&%ﬁ ﬁ ﬂﬂ
T ey AR LAIGRR
Pl = HERBOTA
services and IT risk assessment
services to: \
—an other related party —H b BEEE 5 (ii) 32,880 25,757
Referral fee paid for introducing and AT AR 48 R
referring prospective clients to the gl ﬁggﬁ' %ZKE L)
Group: BhR \
- an other related party —H iRy (iii) - 2,588
Amount paid for the provision of FIIA T R RIS R G EF
software maintenance, upgrade e - R IR R
: HFRIE ¢
and support services from: )
— an other related party — H fth B 75 (iv) 354 353
Amount received for the sharing of M T AR H&HX#\FH /N
the offices to: EHHE \
— other related parties —Hfb Eﬁﬂurﬁ (v) 1,267 3,143
Amount paid for the sharing of A TR HEARA S
the offices to: EHFA i
— other related parties —E fh B R 7 (v) 2,741 289 f
}‘:(\/
1]
=
&«
=
&
il
&
&
NG
%
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

30 BB RS (42)

(a) (continued) (a (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaF FTEx FHET
Cash dealing income for the provision MATRARRERER S
of cash dealing services: R 75 45 B ) 3R 8 32 5 I
A
— other related parties — H b A B (vi) 3,309 1,136
Amounts due from related parties FE e B Bt 75 YRR OB
Balances with related parties: B H fth [ B 7 ) AS R
- TPME —REETBRHM (vii) 569 4,582
Notes: Bt

(M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Management fee expenses are charged for the provision
of financial system services which include the provision
of enterprise resources planning system support with
reference to the costs incurred.

Amounts are paid for the provision of software development
and maintenance services, IT infrastructure project
management and maintenance services and IT risk
assessment services.

Referral fees are paid for introducing and referring
prospective clients to the Group in accordance with the fee
agreement.

Amounts are paid for the provision of software
maintenance, upgrade and support services based on the
terms on agreement signed between parties.

Amounts are received and paid for the sharing of the
offices based on the agreement signed between parties.

Cash dealing income is recognised when cash dealing
transactions have been completed by market makers with
reference to prevailing exchange rate.

()

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

EEERZ BRI R SR
EREERHEEEREERMAX
RS EELNE M mUER

IR LB R B MRS - BRARL
REZTAE BTN GEERY MEM
Rt R B 1 £k AR 795 0 2 A MO IR

RIBREHHERRENBRENEZS T
REBMZSOENE -

L HE G B M - T AR S SR RS
i 32 A5 89 R IR TH AR IR AT £ 5 75 P 3%
Rl Z MR IGR B RE ©

RIBFTORS T HET 2R LB R
= 1 U R B AN ROA

REXHWARTHHERTEARE
R G2 EBRITIERER -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vii) Deposits placed are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

(b) Key management includes directors (executive & non-
executive) and the remuneration of the key management
personnel of the Group are disclosed in Note 28:

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating lease commitments

The Group leases offices under non-cancellable operating
lease commitments existing at the year end. Leases were
negotiated for an average term of 3 to 5 years.

The Group is required to give six-month notice for termination
of these leases.

30 BB RS (42)

31

(a (&)
Kt - (&)

(vii) FTfFRZ FRAEER N RS -

(b) AEEXTZEEE (BRFEHITRIEHN
TEFR)REEZEEABNFHFHNM
FT28H FE ©

AERIARER
REBERRE

AREBRBERSFREET A HHLZ
MEAREHERAE  -HEKRFH=51
FhER -

AEBAZHNEA BT AR IEZER
= .

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Within one year —F R 14,182 10,826
One to five years — A e 23,173 8,357
37,355 19,183

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 32 #LEMBERE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for KN HRBEEEeR _ZE2—hFE=H

issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2019.

I\ B #EfE R IR T3 o

BB EEmMEMARAT % iR
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A summary of the results and of the financial position of KVB L THIIEmBEERScHEBEGR AR ([AA
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with & - EERERB AT SRBIAER]) BER
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the last five financial years, as A KREE 2 & R EAAHE - JHiE4EE
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out & FI|2$ & 4% > BA 15 R 3% ©

below.
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-NF —T—tF —F-F —T-1Ff —FT-0OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHT FETT FETT
Total income DN L] 471,111 514,932 362,607 406,811 188,634
Profit before tax BR % A 4 A 51,757 35,019 54,243 128,149 47,697
Profit for the year F R 34,249 27,354 38,688 94,709 35,081
Total comprehensive income FRE2AN=BE
for the year 19,144 31,212 40,716 83,328 29,785
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E —T—+F —E-—RF —E-HF —T—NOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET FHET FET FHET
Total assets BELE 1,139,242 1,400,785 1,082,158 1,068,776 626,510
Total liabilities BEESE (567,536) (853,558) (567,641) (603,366) (233,787)
571,706 547 227 514,517 465,410 392,723
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,139,242 1,400,785 1,082,158 1,068,776 626,510
Net current assets MENEEFE 712,811 505,056 475,645 447,080 379,837
Total assets less current BEERMSEE
liabilities 767,819 550,638 515,368 466,049 392,929

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT
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